
Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County 
Subdivision of the State of California  
 

We Manage Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  
 Kenneth Leary, Chair  Diane Dillon, Vice Chair  Margie Mohler   Gregory Rodeno   Brad Wagenknecht 
 Ryan Gregory, Alternate   Eve Kahn, Alternate  Scott Sedgley, Alternate  

    
  

Administrative Office  
1030 Seminary Street, B 
Napa, California 94559 

Telephone: 707-259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov  

   
 

 
 

 

Consistent with the California Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 promoting social distancing, there will 
be no physical or in-person meeting location available to the public. Instead, the meeting will be conducted 

by teleconference. All staff reports for items on the meeting agenda are available on the Commission’s 
website at https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/staff_reports.aspx. The meeting will be accessible for all members 

of the public to attend via the link and phone number listed below. 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, October 5, 2020, 2:00 PM 

This meeting will be conducted by Teleconference 
Written public comments may be submitted PRIOR to the meeting (Deadline October 5 at 10:00 A.M.). 

Public comments DURING the meeting: See “Coronavirus (COVID-19) – Notice of Meeting Procedures” on 
page 3 of the agenda.  

Join Teleconference Meeting Electronically (computer, tablet or smartphone): click on the link below: 

https://countyofnapa.zoom.us/j/99505726101 

Join Teleconference Meeting by Telephone: 

Dial: (669) 900-6833 
Follow the prompts: Meeting ID: 99505726101# 
Please avoid the speakerphone function to prevent echoing. 

If you need assistance before or during the meeting, please contact Commission Clerk Kathy Mabry at: 
kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov or call the LAFCO office at (707) 259-8645. 

1. CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIR; ROLL CALL

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
The Chair will consider a motion to approve the agenda as prepared by the Executive Officer with any requests
to remove or rearrange items by members or staff.

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
The public is encouraged to address the Commission concerning any matter not on the Agenda. The
Commission is prohibited from discussing or taking action on any item not appearing on the posted Agenda.
See Coronavirus (COVID-19) – Notice of Meeting Procedure on page 3 of the agenda to submit comments.

5. CONSENT ITEMS
All items calendared as consent are considered ministerial or non-substantive action items. As such, all
consent items may be approved under one vote of the Commission. With the concurrence of the Chair, a
Commissioner may request discussion of an item on the consent calendar.

a) Approval of Meeting Minutes: August 3, 2020 Regular Meeting
b) Proposed Amendment No. 2 to Contract with Policy Consulting Associates, LLC

http://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/
https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/staff_reports.aspx
https://countyofnapa.zoom.us/j/99505726101
mailto:kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov


LAFCO of Napa County Regular Meeting Agenda 
October 5, 2020 
Page 2 of 4 
 
6. INFORMATION ITEMS 

Information items will be received by the Commission without a presentation from staff unless requested by 
the Commission. Information items do not involve any action by the Commission. 

 
a) Current and Future Proposals 
b) Work Program Progress Report 
c) Executive Officer Report 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

Any member of the public may address the Commission with respect to a scheduled public hearing item.  
See Coronavirus (COVID-19) – Notice of Meeting Procedure on page 3 of the agenda to submit comments.  

 
a) Final Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review and Associated CEQA 

Findings (Approx. 45 Minutes) 
The Commission will review a final Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review 
(MSR). The final report includes written determinations making statements on the level and range of 
services provided by the 14 local government agencies in Napa County with a role in providing public 
water and/or wastewater services. The recommended actions are for the Commission to (1) receive and 
file the final report and (2) adopt a resolution that confirms the determinative statements in the final report 
and finds the MSR is exempt from further review under the California Environmental Quality Act 
pursuant to California Code of Regulations Section 15306. 

 
8. ACTION ITEMS 

Items calendared for action do not require a public hearing before consideration by the Commission. 
Applicants may address the Commission. Any member of the public may provide comments on an item.  
See Coronavirus (COVID-19) – Notice of Meeting Procedure on page 3 of the agenda to submit comments.  
 
a) Streamlined Island Annexation Proceedings and Maps (Approx. 15 Minutes) 

The Commission will receive a report with maps of all unincorporated areas located within a city or 
town’s sphere of influence in Napa County. The report and maps will clarify which of these 
unincorporated areas are consistent with the local adopted definition of an “island” pursuant to the 
Commission’s Policy on Unincorporated Islands. The Commission will also receive information on the 
streamlined island annexation process. The recommended action is for the Commission to consider 
providing direction to staff with respect to any desired island annexation efforts. 
 

9.  COMMISSIONER COMMENTS/REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
This is an opportunity for Commissioners to comment on issues not listed on the agenda, provided that the 
subject matter is within the jurisdiction of the Commission. No discussion or action may occur or be taken, 
except to place the item on a future agenda if approved by a majority of the Commission. 
 

10.  CLOSED SESSIONS: 
 

a) Public Employee Performance Evaluation – (Government Code Section 54957(b)(1)) 
Employee: Executive Officer  
 

b) Conference with Labor Negotiators – (Government Code Section 54957.6) 
Agency Designated Representative: Commission Chair 
Unrepresented Employee: Executive Officer 
 

11.  ADJOURNMENT TO NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING 
Monday, December 7, 2020, at 2:00 P.M. at the Napa County Board of Supervisors Chambers, located at 
1195 Third Street, 3rd floor, Napa, CA 94559. It is anticipated the meeting may be conducted by 
teleconference due to COVID-19 in compliance with Executive Order N-29-20.  
 



LAFCO of Napa County Regular Meeting Agenda 
October 5, 2020 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

 
MEETING INFORMATION 

 
**CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) – Notice of Meeting Procedures 

 
 
TELCONFERENCE MEETING: In order to slow the spread of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, the Commission 
will conduct this meeting as a teleconference in compliance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 and Napa County 
Shelter at Home Order issued March 18, 2020, and members of the Commission or Commission staff may participate in 
this meeting telephonically or electronically. Members of the public may participate in the meeting, as described below. 
 
Join Teleconference Meeting Electronically (computer, tablet or smartphone): click on the link below: 
 
https://countyofnapa.zoom.us/j/99505726101  
  
Join Teleconference Meeting by Telephone: 
 
Dial: (669) 900-6833  
Follow the prompts: Meeting ID: 99505726101#  
Please avoid the speakerphone function to prevent echoing.  
 
If you need assistance before or during the meeting, please contact Commission Clerk Kathy Mabry at: 
kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov or call the LAFCO office at (707) 259-8645. 
 
SUBMITTING WRITTEN COMMENTS TO BE READ AT THE MEETING: Any member of the public may submit a 
written comment to the Commission before the meeting by October 5, 2020 at 10:00 A.M. by email to 
kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov or by mail to Napa LAFCO 1030 Seminary St., Suite B, Napa, CA 94559-2814. If you are 
commenting on a particular item on the agenda, please identify the agenda item number and letter. Any comments of 500 
words or less (per person, per item) will be read into the record if: (1) the subject line includes “COMMENT TO 
COMMISSION – PLEASE READ”; and (2) it is received by the Commission Clerk prior to the deadline of October 5, 
2020 at 10:00 A.M. 
 
SUBMITTING SUPPLEMENTAL WRITTEN COMMENTS: Any member of the public may submit supplemental written 
comments to the Commission, beyond the 500-word limit for comments read into the record, and those supplemental written 
comments will be made a part of the written record. 
 
SUBMITTING SPOKEN COMMENTS DURING THE COMMISSION MEETING: 
 
Electronically:  

1. We request that you identify yourself by name as this will be visible online and will be used to notify you that it is 
your turn to speak. 

2. When the Commission calls for the item on which you wish to speak, click “participants”, a menu will appear. On 
computer or tablet: click on the “raise hand” icon or word. On a smartphone: click on your name in the list of 
participants, click on “raise hand”. Staff will activate and unmute speakers in turn.  

3. When you are called upon to speak please provide your name and address for the record.  
4. When called, please limit your remarks to the time limit allotted (3 minutes). 

 
By phone (landline): 

1. Your phone number will appear but not your name.  
2. When the Commission calls for the item on which you wish to speak, press *9 to “raise your hand”. Staff will 

activate and unmute speakers in turn. You will be called upon using the last four digits of your phone number, 
since your name is not visible.  

3. When you are called upon to speak please provide your name and address for the record.  
4. When called, please limit your remarks to the time limit allotted (3 minutes). 

https://countyofnapa.zoom.us/j/99505726101
mailto:kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov
mailto:kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov


LAFCO of Napa County Regular Meeting Agenda 
October 5, 2020 
Page 4 of 4 
 
VIEWING RECORDING OF TELECONFERENCE MEETING: The Commission’s teleconference meeting will be 
recorded. Members of the public may access the teleconference meeting and other archived Commission meetings by going 
to https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/cm_meeting_video.aspx. Please allow up to one week for production time. 
 
AGENDA ITEMS: The Commission may reschedule items on the agenda. The Commission will generally hear uncontested 
matters first, followed by discussions of contested matters, and staff announcements in that order.  
  
CONDUCT OF HEARINGS: A contested matter is usually heard as follows: (1) discussion of the staff report and the 
environmental document; (2) testimony of proponent; (3) testimony of opponent; (4) public testimony; (5) rebuttal by 
proponent; (6) provision of additional clarification by staff as required; (7) close of the public hearing; (8) Commission 
discussion and Commission vote. 
  
VOTING: A quorum consists of three members of the Commission. No action or recommendation of the Commission is 
valid unless a majority of the quorum of the Commission concurs therein. 
  
OFF AGENDA ITEMS: Matters under the jurisdiction of the Commission and not on the posted agenda may be addressed 
by the public under “Public Comments” on the Agenda. The Commission limits testimony on matters not on the agenda to 
500-words or less for a particular subject and in conformance with the COVID-19-Notice of Meeting Procedures. The 
Commission cannot take action on any unscheduled items. 
  
SPECIAL NEEDS: Meetings are accessible to persons with disabilities. Requests for assistive listening devices or other 
considerations should be made 72 hours in advance through the Commission Clerk at (707) 259-8645 or 
kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov.  
 
POLITICAL REFORM ACT: Pursuant to Government Code Sections 56700.1 and 81000 et seq., any person or 
combination of persons who directly or indirectly contributes $1,000 or more or expends $1,000 or more in support of or 
in opposition to a change of organization or reorganization that will be, or has been, submitted to LAFCO must comply, to 
the same extent as provided for local initiative measures, with reporting and disclosure requirements of the California 
Political Reform Act of 1974. Additional information can be obtained by contacting the Fair Political Practices 
Commission. 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 84308, if you wish to participate in the proceedings indicated on this agenda, you 
or your agent is prohibited from making a campaign contribution of $250 or more to any Commissioner or Alternate 
Commissioner. This prohibition begins on the date you begin to actively support or oppose an application before LAFCO 
and continues until three months after a final decision is rendered by LAFCO. If you or your agent has made a contribution 
of $250 or more to any Commissioner or Alternate Commissioner during the 12 months preceding the decision, that 
Commissioner or Alternate Commissioner must disqualify themselves from the decision in the proceeding. However, 
disqualification is not required if the Commissioner or Alternate Commissioner returns that campaign contribution within 
30 days of learning both about the contribution and the fact that you are a participant in the proceedings. 
  
MEETING MATERIALS: Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the members of the Commission regarding 
any item on this agenda after the posting of the agenda and not otherwise exempt from disclosure will be made available 
for public review at https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov or by contacting the Commission Clerk at kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov 
or call the LAFCO office at (707) 259-8645. If the supplemental materials are made available to the members of the 
Commission at the meeting, a copy will be available for public review at https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov. Staff reports are 
available online at https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/staff_reports.aspx or upon request to the Commission Clerk at 
kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov or call the LAFCO office at (707) 259-8645.  
 

  

https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/cm_meeting_video.aspx
mailto:kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov
https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/
mailto:kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov
https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/
mailto:kmabry@napa.lafco.ca.gov


 

Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 

Margie Mohler, Commissioner 
Councilmember, Town of Yountville 

Scott Sedgley, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 

Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 3rd District 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

Ryan Gregory, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

Gregory Rodeno, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

Eve Kahn, Alternate Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County 
Subdivision of the State of California  

We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 
Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

Agenda Item 5a (Consent/Action) 

TO: Local Agency Formation Commission 

PREPARED BY: Kathy Mabry, Commission Clerk 

MEETING DATE: October 5, 2020 

SUBJECT: Approval of Meeting Minutes:  August 3, 2020 Regular Meeting 

DISCUSSION AND RECOMMENDATION 

The Commission will consider approving the draft meeting minutes prepared by staff for 
the August 3, 2020 Regular Meeting, included as Attachment One.  

Staff recommends approval. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1) Draft Minutes for August 3, 2020 Regular Meeting



LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NAPA COUNTY 
           REGULAR* MEETING MINUTES OF AUGUST 3, 2020 

*Due to Coronavirus (COVID-19) and consistent with Governor Newsom’s
Executive Order N-29-20 promoting social distancing, the meeting was 
conducted via teleconference. The meeting was accessible for members 
of the public to attend electronically via a link and phone number displayed 
on page 3 of the agenda under Notice of Meeting Procedures. 

1. WELCOME AND CALL TO ORDER; ROLL CALL
Chair Leary called the regular meeting of August 3, 2020 to order at 2:07 PM via teleconference.
At the time of roll call, the following Commissioners and Staff were present:

Regular Commissioners Alternate Commissioners Staff 
Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
Margie Mohler 
Gregory Rodeno 
Brad Wagenknecht  

Ryan Gregory  
(left @ 4:13 PM) 
Eve Kahn  
Scott Sedgley 

Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer 
DeeAnne Gillick, Commission Counsel 
Dawn Mittleman Longoria, Analyst II 
Kathy Mabry, Secretary 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chair Leary invited members of the audience to join him in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. APPROVAL OF AMENDED AGENDA
Chair Leary asked if there were any requests to rearrange the agenda. There were no requests.
Upon motion by Commissioner Mohler and second by Commissioner Dillon, the Commission
adopted the agenda as submitted.

VOTE: 
AYES: MOHLER, DILLON, LEARY, RODENO AND WAGENKNECHT 
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT: NONE 
ABSTAIN: NONE 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Prior to the meeting, the public was encouraged to submit comments to the Commission concerning any
matter not on the agenda, with specific instructions noted under Coronavirus (COVID-19) – Notice of
Meeting Procedure on page 3 of the agenda.
There were no public comments received prior to the meeting, via mail or email.

5. CONSENT ITEMS
a) Approval of Minutes: June 1, 2020 Regular Meeting and July 13, 2020 Special Meeting

Upon motion by Commissioner Mohler and second by Commissioner Rodeno, the consent
items were approved by roll call vote:

VOTE: 
AYES: MOHLER, RODENO, DILLON, LEARY AND WAGENKNECHT 
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT: NONE 
ABSTAIN: NONE

   ATTACHMENT ONE



Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County 
Regular Meeting Minutes of August 3, 2020 Page 2 

6. INFORMATION ITEMS
a) Current and Future Proposals
b) Fourth Quarter Budget Report for 2019-2020
c) Countywide Update on Housing and General Plans
d) Strategic Plan and Work Program Progress Report
e) Executive Officer Report
Though no action is required on this item, the Chair requested the Executive Officer to provide 
a review of the anticipated annexation proposals listed in agenda item #6a. 

7. ACTION ITEMS
a) Los Robles Drive  No. 2 Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District and Associated
CEQA Findings          
The Commission considered approving a proposal submitted by landowner petition for annexation  
of four incorporated parcels totaling approximately 15.4 acres in size to the Napa Sanitation District. 
The affected territory is within the City of Napa, is located at 21 Los Robles Drive, 33 Los Robles  
Drive, 45 Los Robles Drive, and a property with no situs address, and identified by the County  
Assessor as 046-180-017, 046-180-008, 046-180-009, and 046-180-016, respectively.  
Analyst Dawn Mittleman Longoria provided an overview of this agenda item. 
There were no Commissioner comments received.  Chair Leary opened the public hearing. 
There were no public comments received. Chair Leary closed the public hearing.  
Upon motion by Commissioner Rodeno and second by Commissioner Mohler, the Commission 
approved the staff recommendation to adopt the resolution approving the annexation, by roll call 
vote (Resolution No. 2020-08):  

VOTE: 
AYES: RODENO, MOHLER, DILLON, LEARY AND WAGENKNECHT 
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT: NONE 
ABSTAIN: NONE 

b) Linda Vista Avenue No. 21 Annexation to the Napa Sanitation District and Associated
CEQA Findings   
The Commission considered approving a proposal submitted by landowner petition for annexation  
of four incorporated parcels totaling approximately 2.8 acres in size to the Napa Sanitation District.  
The affected territory is within the City of Napa, is located at 3660 Linda Vista Avenue,  
4009 Linda Vista Avenue, 4213 Linda Vista Avenue, and 2415 Trower Avenue, and identified  
by the County Assessor as 007-231-002, 007-152-030, 007-103-004, and 007-172-023, respectively. 
The purpose of the annexation is to eliminate private septic systems.  
Staff presented an overview and history of this item, noting that neighbors have joined together to  
annex the subject property.  A brief discussion was held on the topic of combined annexations. 
There were no Commissioner comments received.  Chair Leary opened the public hearing. 
There were no public comments received. Chair Leary closed the public hearing.  
Upon motion by Commissioner Mohler and second by Commissioner Rodeno, the Commission  
approved the staff recommendation to adopt the resolution approving the annexation, by roll call  
vote (Resolution No. 2020-09):  

VOTE: 
AYES: MOHLER, RODENO, DILLON, LEARY AND WAGENKNECHT 
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT: NONE 
ABSTAIN: NONE



Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County 
Regular Meeting Minutes of August 3, 2020 Page 3 

7. ACTION ITEMS – continued:
c) Public Comments Received on the Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service
Review Draft Report  
The Commission discussed the public comments received on the draft Countywide Water and 
Wastewater Municipal Service Review (MSR).   
Staff provided an overview of this agenda item, noting the Public Draft MSR was released May 18th, 
a public virtual workshop was held on July 13th;  and July 20th was the deadline for all comments.  
Staff also informed the Commission that three separate comments were received prior to this  
meeting.  Those comments were added as supplemental items on LAFCO’s website under Staff  
Reports for today’s meeting, and the comments were emailed to all Commissioners.   
Staff summarized that the majority of public comments received (attached to Staff Report) generally 
related to clarifying information, technical corrections, governance structure options, water security, 
groundwater for municipal use, trucked water policies, LAFCO sphere of influence policies, 
environmental considerations, water quality and rate issues in Berryessa, and the need to plan for  
future emergencies.  All comments will be included in the final MSR, and revisions will be made to  
the report to address certain comments, based on the Commission’s direction, and the Consultant  
team and staff discussions.  A final report will be presented to the Commission on October 5, 2020       
as part of a public hearing, which may also include adoption by the Commission. 
Staff noted that if the Commission does not specifically discuss a comment and give direction on  
that comment, Staff and the Consultant will still confer and decide what revisions would be  
appropriate for the report.  
The Commission was asked to discuss the public comments and direct staff to incorporate any  
desired revisions into the report, or direct staff to provide written responses to any of the comments.  
Staff noted the MSR Consultant, Jennifer Stephenson of Policy Consulting Associates, is present. 

Commissioner comments: 
 Commissioner Mohler suggested staff move forward with any specific numerical or wording
details provided by each municipality in terms of correcting any information in the draft MSR, and 
appreciates what LAFCO, the Consultant and Stakeholders have done to prepare a great baseline 
document. She also recommends having a conclusion in the report about possibly forming a  
countywide agency, or developing a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) agreement, or any other options. 

 Commissioner Dillon expressed concern about repetition in the report and asked that to be
minimized.  A discussion was held with the Consultant about Resort Improvement Districts (RID’s)  
and past recommendations to create a Community Services Area in a 2011 MSR report. Commissioner 
Dillon requested the Consultant further research this and any findings be incorporated into this MSR.  

 Chair Leary agreed with Commission Dillon about having concise and accurate information in
one place, and back stories on certain issues should be part of the discussion in the report. 

 Commission Kahn agreed with Commission Dillon on some private water districts. Specifically,
she was recently moved by comments from Jay Gardner, from the Milton Road private water district. 
They are not a municipal service, so they were not included in the report, and wondered if there is any 
way to bring an organization like that into the discussion. Trucked water policies were also discussed  
and it was suggested the topic be brought into the discussion in regards to having a countywide agency. 

 Commissioner Mohler said she liked a letter from City of Napa’s Phil Brun about trucked water
policies, and asked how those comments will be incorporated in to the updated MSR. Staff answered 
that any recommendations are discussed with agency staff to ask if it is on their radar, or on their work 
plan.  If the Commission is silent on the matter, the comments would be still included in the comments 
log.  



Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County 
Regular Meeting Minutes of August 3, 2020 Page 4 

7. ACTION ITEMS – continued:
c) Public Comments Received on the Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service
Review Draft Report - continued: 
 Commissioner Gregory said we should be starting with the question: What are we trying to
accomplish with such an agency?  The report includes the recommendation that Napa Sanitation  
District take over NBRID and LBRID, but would there be cost savings and efficiencies discovered? 
Those type of considerations need to be addressed. 

Public comments: 
• Jason Holley, City Manager, City of American Canyon thanked the Commission for the
opportunity to address LAFCO, and complimented the work product, staff and the Consultant team  
for a process that has been under way for a year or more.  Mr. Holley stated a comment letter from  
the City was sent to LAFCO today, which addresses the confirmation of the service boundaries for 
American Canyon.  The City is working with LAFCO Counsel and staff and believes it can get  
this resolved and continue to work with that group, and that the final document that the Commission 
will be asked to approve on October 5, 2020 will reflect the accurate historical boundaries that exist. 

No other public comments were received.  

Chair Leary thanked everyone for their comments.  He also discussed how the comments pertaining  
to the report are included, and then suggested two Commissioners work together (Ad Hoc) with staff  
on what the final report will look like and how the recommendations and determinations will show up. 
Clarification from staff was requested regarding finalizing the report, or a summary of comments 
received.  
MSR Consultant, Jennifer Stephenson informed the Commission that a comment log is included in 
the report (as an appendix) which should address any concerns, and summarize for the public and  
the Commissioners those comments that were received and any changes made, thus allowing the 
Commissioners to focus their direction on comments of interest or significance. 
Ms. Stephenson suggested that perhaps the purpose of the ad hoc Committee would be to review  
the comment log and changes made, address the comments, then the Commission could provide  
any additional direction if there was something of concern. 
Staff noted it will also put together all substantive Commissioner comments from today’s meeting.   
Commissioner Wagenknecht supported the idea of a two-person committee to review comments.   
He also suggested the small water companies who may have no protection be included in the MSR. 
Commissioner Mohler suggested staff and consultant put together comments of significance for the  
ad hoc Committee in order to have a focused discussion.  
Chair Leary asked Commissioners who would be interested in being on the ad hoc Committee.  
The Commission nominated Vice Chair Dillon and Commissioner Mohler to form a committee  
along with the Executive Officer to address the comments from the MSR.   
Upon motion by Commissioner Wagenknecht and second by Commissioner Rodeno, the  
Commission appointed Commissioners Dillon and Mohler to the ad hoc MSR Comments Committee.   
Staff will coordinate the committee meetings in the next few weeks: 

VOTE: 
AYES: WAGENKNECHT, RODENO, DILLON, LEARY AND MOHLER 
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT: NONE 
ABSTAIN: NONE 



Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County 
Regular Meeting Minutes of August 3, 2020         Page 5 
 

 

7.   ACTION ITEMS – continued: 
d)   Legislative Report 
The Commission received a report on legislative items affecting LAFCOs. The recommended  
action is for the Commission to authorize the Executive Officer to submit letters to the Assembly 
Appropriations Committee and Senator Anna Caballero opposing the proposed pending amendments  
to Senate Bill 414. 
The Commission’s Legislative Committee, comprised of Vice Chair Dillon and Commissioner  
Mohler, along with the Executive Officer met on March 9, 2020, and reviewed 30 bills that were  
being tracked by CALAFCO at the time. The Committee agreed to watch several bills and potentially 
return with recommended positions for the full Commission’s consideration at a future meeting.  
However, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Legislature adjusted its priorities and many  
bills that affected LAFCOs were suspended or withdrawn including all bills being watched by the 
Committee. At this time, the Legislature’s focus is on bills related to COVID-19, education, fire 
response and prevention, and public safety reform.  

 One the bills, Senate Bill (SB) 414, relating to Small System Water Authority Act is relevant to the  
 Commission and is being watched by the Committee. CALAFCO recently released an urgent call  
 for action requesting all individual LAFCOs take a formal position opposing the proposed pending  
 amendments to SB 414. The negative impacts of the amendments are further described in the draft  
 letters of opposition, which were provided to the Commission in the staff report. 
 The Commission has not taken a position on SB 414 to date. However, given the urgent nature and  

the bill’s potential relevance to certain recommendations in the Commission’s Countywide Water  
and Wastewater Municipal Service Review, staff believes it is imperative to take a position on the  
pending amendments. With this in mind, it was recommended the Commission authorize the  
Executive Officer to submit the draft letters with any desired changes to the Assembly  
Appropriations Committee and Senator Anna Caballero opposing the pending amendments. 
Staff provided a full report on Senate Bill 414, as it relates to LAFCO’s existing authority.  
The recommended action was for the Commission to authorize the Executive Officer  
to submit formal letters opposing the pending amendments for Senate Bill 414. 
Vice Chair Dillon questioned why two letters would be required.  
Pamela Miller, CALAFCO Director was present and answered that one of the letters is to the 
Appropriations Committee, which deals with the fiscal aspects, and the other letter, which is to  
the Senator, involves fiscal and policy issues.  
Chair Leary thanked Pamela Miller for the clarification regarding the two letters in question. 
Upon motion by Commissioner Mohler and second by Commission Dillon, the Commission  
authorized the Executive Officer to submit formal letters opposing the proposed pending  
amendments to Senate Bill 414, with all of the Commissioners names listed on the letters: 

VOTE: 
AYES: MOHLER, DILLON, LEARY, RODENO AND WAGENKNECHT 
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT: NONE 
ABSTAIN: NONE  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County 
Regular Meeting Minutes of August 3, 2020         Page 6 
 

 

7.   ACTION ITEMS – continued: 
e)   Outreach Committee Update 
The Commission received an update from the ad hoc Outreach Committee on potential strategies  
and resources needed to provide outreach and education to the general public related to LAFCO 
activities. 
Analyst Dawn Mittleman Longoria presented this item. 
The Committee (Commissioners Kahn and Leary) met on July 20, 2020, and considered the  
significant impacts of COVID-19 with respect to previously discussed outreach strategies.  
The Committee concluded the plan and its implementation should be flexible to accommodate  
changed conditions. The Committee agreed upon a Draft Outreach Plan as described in the staff  
report, entitled: Napa LAFCO at a Glance.  
Topics include: Who is the target audience (such as newly elected officials), what resources are  
available, and what strategies are possible based on available resources.   
The goals of the draft outreach plan include building trust in the community; providing transparency; 
making LAFCO more visible and less obscure; and providing reliable and consistent facts.  
The implementation strategy was also reviewed.  Complete details are listed in the staff report.  
The recommended action was for the Commission to provide direction to staff and/or the Outreach 
Committee to initiate any additional outreach efforts. 
Commissioner Kahn suggested reaching out to newly elected officials. 
Chair Leary noted that the Committee is cognizant of the budget and is not looking at spending a  
lot of money, but utilizing resources already available.  He also suggested the Commission consider  
a student intern, and perhaps even providing a stipend for the intern. 
Commissioner Wagenknecht suggested when the Outreach Committee does begin their work to contact 
him and Commissioner Gregory (Board of Supervisors) and they will work with the Committee. 
  
 
f)   CALAFCO Voting Delegates and Board Nominations  
The Commission considered appointing voting delegates to represent the Commission for the  
California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions (CALAFCO) Board of Directors 
election and making nominations for the CALAFCO Board. 
Analyst Dawn Mittleman Longoria presented this item, noting the CALAFCO Annual Conference  

 has been cancelled this year, and that the annual Board elections will occur electronically. 
 The Commission was asked to appoint one regular voting delegate and one alternate voting delegate  
 for the Board of Directors election.  Past practice has been to appoint the Chair and Vice Chair.  

This year’s Board elections for the Coastal Region involve the County and District Member seats.  
The Commission does not have special district representation, therefore, the only eligible candidates  
for the Board seat are Vice Chair Dillon, Commissioner Wagenknecht, and Alternate Commissioner  
Gregory (County members).  No County Member expressed interest or was nominated for the  
CALAFCO Board. 
Commissioner Mohler is serving a 2nd term, which expires October 2021 as the Coastal City Member.   

 Upon motion by Commissioner Wagenknecht and second by Commissioner Mohler, the 
Commission formally nominated Commissioners Leary and Dillon to serve as Napa’s voting 
delegate and alternate delegate, respectively, for the CALAFCO Board elections:    
  

VOTE: 
  AYES:   WAGENKNECHT, MOHLER, DILLON, LEARY AND RODENO  
  NOES:   NONE 
  ABSENT:  NONE 
  ABSTAIN:    NONE 
 
 
 



Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County 
Regular Meeting Minutes of August 3, 2020         Page 7 
 

 

 
8. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS/REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

Chair Leary and Commissioner Mohler both agreed to wrap up the current MSR. 
  

9. ADJOURNMENT TO NEXT REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 
The meeting adjourned at 4:28 PM.   The next regular LAFCO meeting is scheduled for  
Monday, October 5, 2020 at 2:00 PM.  
It is anticipated the meeting will be held telephonically due to COVID-19 in compliance  
with California Governor Gavin Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20. 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
ATTEST: 
Dawn Mittleman Longoria, Analyst II 

Prepared by: 

Kenneth Leary, LAFCO Chair 

 
Kathy Mabry, Commission Secretary 



 

 

Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 

Margie Mohler, Commissioner 
Councilmember, Town of Yountville 
 

Scott Sedgley, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 
 
 

Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 3rd District 

 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

 

Ryan Gregory, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

 

Gregory Rodeno, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

 

Eve Kahn, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 

 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County  
Subdivision of the State of California  
 
 
We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

 

 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 

Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5b (Consent/Action) 
 
 
 
TO:    Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
PREPARED BY: Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer 
 
MEETING DATE: October 5, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Amendment No. 2 to Contract with Policy Consulting 

Associates, LLC 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended the Commission approve the proposed Amendment No. 2 to the 
consulting services contract with Policy Consulting Associates, LLC (hereinafter 
“PCA”), included as Attachment One.  
 
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY 
 
PCA began providing the Commission with consulting services by contract on November 
15, 2018. Under the contract, PCA is preparing the Commission’s Countywide Water and 
Wastewater Municipal Service Review. The contract includes a progress payment 
schedule that is structured such that monthly invoice payments are appropriately limited 
and distributed over the term of the contract, which was originally scheduled to expire on 
February 29, 2020. 
 
On February 3, 2020, the Commission approved an amendment to extend the term of the 
contract through December 31, 2020, and modify the progress payment schedule to 
extend through August 2020. The current contract is included as Attachment Two. 
 
The contract specifies a maximum payment amount of $169,875. At the end of August, 
the remaining contract balance totaled $25,500.71. PCA has continued work on the 
project beyond August and the Commission is unable to pay invoices unless they are 
consistent with the progress payment schedule. Staff recommends the Commission 
approve an amendment that would eliminate the progress payment schedule and 
authorize invoice payments to PCA through December 2020, not to exceed the 
$25,500.71 balance, which would be consistent with the current term of the contract. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1) Proposed Amendment No. 2 to Contract with PCA 
2) PCA Contract and Amendment No. 1 
 



AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT NO. 190170D 

BETWEEN THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NAPA COUNTY 
AND POLICY CONSULTING ASSOCIATES LLP 

This Amendment No. 2 to the Professional Services Agreement No. 190170D 
(“Agreement”) between the Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County, a political 
subdivision of the State of California (hereinafter “LAFCO”), and Policy Consulting Associates 
LLP (hereinafter “PCA”), a Nevada limited liability company, shall be effective October 5, 2020. 

WHEREAS, LAFCO entered into the Agreement on November 15, 2018, for PCA to 
provide consulting services to LAFCO to prepare a Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal 
Service Review;  

WHEREAS, the parties entered into Amendment No. 1 on February 3, 2020, to extend the 
term of the Agreement and the progress payment schedule; and 

WHEREAS, the parties now wish to enter into this Amendment No. 2 to eliminate the 
progress payment schedule and authorize payment of monthly invoices through December 2020. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Exhibit C, PAYMENT. Exhibit C, PAYMENT, is hereby amended to eliminate the
progress payment schedule. As of the date of this Amendment No. 2, approximately
$25,500.71 of the total Agreement compensation amount of $169,875 remains to be
paid for services to be rendered pursuant to the Agreement. The Consultant will submit
monthly invoices in September through December 2020 not to exceed a total amount
of $25,500.71 and cumulative Agreement amount of $169,875.

2. Except as expressly amended herein, all terms and conditions of the Agreement as
amended by Amendment No. 1 and Amendment No. 2 shall remain in full force and
effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HAVE ENTERED INTO THIS AMENDMENT AS 
OF THE DATE HEREIN ABOVE APPEARING. 

POLICY CONSULTING ASSOCIATES LLP LAFCO OF NAPA COUNTY 

By:  By:  
Jennifer Stephenson Kenneth Leary 
Principal LAFCO Chair  

By:  
Brendon Freeman 
LAFCO Executive Officer 

Attachment One



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two

kmabry
Typewritten Text

kmabry
Typewritten Text

kmabry
Typewritten Text
 

kmabry
Typewritten Text
190170D



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



Attachment Two



 

 

Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 

Margie Mohler, Commissioner 
Councilmember, Town of Yountville 
 

Scott Sedgley, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 
 
 

Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 3rd District 

 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

 

Ryan Gregory, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

 

Gregory Rodeno, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

 

Eve Kahn, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 

 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County  
Subdivision of the State of California  
 
 
We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

 

 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 

Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6a (Information) 
 
 
 

TO:    Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
PREPARED BY: Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer 
 
MEETING DATE: October 5, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Current and Future Proposals 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
This item is for information purposes only. California Government Code Section 56857 
requires change of organization or reorganization proposals involving special districts to 
be placed on the agenda for the next Commission meeting for information purposes only. 
This report summarizes all proposed changes of organization or reorganization that have 
been submitted or are anticipated to be submitted to the Commission, regardless of which 
types of agencies will be affected. There are currently no active proposals on file and six 
anticipated new proposals expected to be submitted in the foreseeable future. A summary 
of anticipated proposals follows. 
 
Anticipated Proposals 
 
Magnolia Drive/State Highway 221 Annexation to Napa Sanitation District (NSD) 
 
The Napa Valley College (NVC) has inquired about 
annexation of approximately 23 acres of incorporated 
territory to NSD. The subject territory comprises one 
parcel located in the City of Napa at 2277 State Route 
221/Napa-Vallejo Highway and identified as Assessor 
Parcel Number 046-450-054 and is within NSD’s 
sphere of influence (SOI). The purpose of annexation 
will be to facilitate an affordable residential housing 
project adjacent to NVC’s main campus that would 
serve NVC students. The project would include a mix 
of apartments and traditional dorm-style units, study 
rooms and social gathering spaces, a new vehicle 
connection and parking lot, new pedestrian 
connections, and new wastewater and storm water 
infrastructure. NVC has prepared an initial study and 
adopted a mitigated negative declaration to address 
the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). It is anticipated a 
proposal for annexation will be submitted within the next four months. 
 



Current and Future Proposals 
October 5, 2020 
Page 2 of 4 
 
Napa County Resource Conservation District (NCRCD) Annexation 
Staff from NCRCD has inquired about 
annexation of approximately 1,300 acres of 
incorporated territory located in the City of 
Napa. This area comprises the only remaining 
territory located within NCRCD’s sphere of 
influence (SOI) but outside its jurisdictional 
boundary. The purpose of annexation would be 
to allow NCRCD to expand its service 
programs and hold public meetings within the 
affected territory; both activities are currently 
prohibited within the potential annexation area. 
In February 2020, the Commission approved a 
request from NCRCD for a waiver of the 
Commission’s proposal processing fees. It is 
anticipated a proposal for annexation will be 
submitted within the next six months. 
 
 
Vintage High School Farm Sphere of Influence Amendment and Annexation to NSD 
The Napa Valley Unified School District 
(NVUSD) previously submitted a 
preliminary application for an SOI 
amendment and annexation of approximately 
12.8 acres of territory involving NSD. The 
affected territory is unincorporated and 
contiguous to the City of Napa near the 
eastern terminus of Trower Avenue. The 
affected territory is currently undeveloped 
and designated for residential land use under 
the County of Napa General Plan. The 
purpose of the SOI amendment and 
annexation is to facilitate NVUSD’s planned 
relocation of the educational farm and retain 
proximity to Vintage High School. The 
preliminary application is deemed 
incomplete until additional information and 
documents are submitted by NVUSD. It is 
important to note in February 2020, without taking formal action, the Commission 
signaled to NVUSD a willingness to waive its local policy requiring concurrent 
annexation to the City of Napa. It is anticipated a proposal will be submitted to amend 
NSD’s SOI and annex the subject parcels to NSD within the next year.  
 
 
 
 



Current and Future Proposals 
October 5, 2020 
Page 3 of 4 
 
Watson Lane/Paoli Loop Annexation to the City of American Canyon 
A landowner has submitted a notice of intent 
to circulate a petition to annex 16 parcels and 
a portion of railroad totaling approximately 
77.7 acres of unincorporated territory to the 
City of American Canyon. The area is located 
within the City’s SOI near Watson Lane and 
Paoli Loop. The area is also within the 
American Canyon Fire Protection District’s 
jurisdictional boundary. The parcels are 
within an unincorporated pocket that is 
ineligible for the streamlined island 
annexation proceedings due to the existence 
of prime agricultural lands on five of the 
parcels. The purpose of annexation is to allow 
development of the area for industrial and 
residential purposes. Annexation would also 
help facilitate the extension of Newell Drive 
to South Kelly Road. Prior to submitting a proposal for annexation, the City must first 
amend its General Plan, prezone the majority of the area, negotiate a property tax sharing 
agreement with the County, and address the requirements of CEQA. It is anticipated a 
proposal for annexation will be submitted within the next year. 
 
El Centro Avenue Annexation to NSD 
A landowner inquired about annexation of 
one parcel to NSD. The parcel is located 
at 1583 El Centro Avenue, in the City of 
Napa, and in NSD’s SOI. Current land 
uses within the subject parcel include a 
single-family residence and a planted 
vineyard. The purpose of annexation 
would be to facilitate a residential 
development project under the City’s land 
use authority. Based on parcel size and the 
City’s land use designation, annexation to 
NSD could potentially facilitate the future 
development of the subject parcel to 
include up to 36 total single-family 
residential units. The City has indicated 
an environmental impact report will be 
prepared for the residential development 
project. It is anticipated a proposal for 
annexation will be submitted within the next 18 months. 
 



Current and Future Proposals 
October 5, 2020 
Page 4 of 4 
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Annexation to the Napa Berryessa Resort 
Improvement District (NBRID) 
Staff from NBRID has inquired about 
annexation of the two unincorporated 
parcels comprising NBRID’s two 
wastewater treatment plants. The 
wastewater treatment plants are 
owned by NBRID and located outside 
NBRID’s SOI and boundary. The 
purpose of annexation would be to 
reduce NBRID’s annual property tax 
obligations. The submittal of an 
application from the District to annex 
one or both of the parcels is expected 
to follow the Commission’s action on 
a comprehensive SOI Update for 
NBRID, which will follow the 
completion of the Commission’s 
Countywide Water and Wastewater 
Municipal Service Review. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 



 

 

Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 

Margie Mohler, Commissioner 
Councilmember, Town of Yountville 
 

Scott Sedgley, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 
 
 

Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 3rd District 

 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

 

Ryan Gregory, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

 

Gregory Rodeno, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

 

Eve Kahn, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 

 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County  
Subdivision of the State of California  
 
 
We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

 

 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 

Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6b (Information) 
 
 
 
TO:    Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
PREPARED BY: Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer 
    
MEETING DATE: October 5, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Work Program Progress Report 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Local policy directs the Commission to annually adopt a Work Program for purposes of 
providing a comprehensive overview of agency activities over the course of the fiscal year. 
The Commission’s financial and staff resources are predominantly allocated to studies and 
applications, which include municipal service reviews (MSRs), sphere of influence (SOI) 
updates, boundary change proposals, and outside service requests.  
 
On June 1, 2020, the Commission adopted the Work Program 2020-2021 (“Work 
Program”). Staff presents an informational progress report at each subsequent meeting to 
inform the Commission of pertinent updates. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
This item is for information purposes only and provides an update on progress made on the 
scheduled activities in the Work Program. This report also serves to inform the 
Commission of any changes in circumstances or priorities. 
 
A Work Program progress chart is included as Attachment One. The following is an update 
on scheduled studies and applications. 
 
Studies: MSRs and SOI Updates 
 

• Countywide Water and Wastewater MSR 
This MSR involves a comprehensive evaluation of all local government agencies 
that provide public water and/or wastewater service in Napa County. A final report 
for possible adoption is included on today’s agenda as item 7a. 
 
 



Work Program Progress Report  
October 5, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
 

• City of St. Helena MSR and SOI Update 
A preliminary draft MSR and SOI Update for the City of St. Helena was completed 
in August 2017. The City requested and the Commission granted an indefinite 
continuation. Staff will resume work on this MSR and SOI Update upon request by 
the City or direction from the Commission. 
 

• Lake Berryessa Resort Improvement District SOI Update 
This SOI Update will be based on information contained in the Countywide Water 
and Wastewater MSR. The target completion date for this activity is April 2021. 
 

• Napa Berryessa Resort Improvement District SOI Update 
This SOI Update will be based on information contained in the Countywide Water 
and Wastewater MSR. The target completion date for this activity is April 2021. 
 

• Spanish Flat Water District SOI Update 
This SOI Update will be based on information contained in the Countywide Water 
and Wastewater MSR. The target completion date for this activity is April 2021. 
 

• Napa Sanitation District SOI Update 
This SOI Update will be based on information contained in the Countywide Water 
and Wastewater MSR. The target completion date for this activity is June 2021. 
 

• City of Napa MSR and SOI Update 
This MSR and SOI Update will be partially based on information contained in the 
Countywide Water and Wastewater MSR. The target completion date for this 
activity is December 2021. 

 
Applications: Boundary Changes and Outside Service Agreements 
 

• Annexation Proposals 
There are currently no active proposals on file and six anticipated proposals. A 
report on current and future proposals is included on today’s agenda as item 6a. 
 

• Island Annexation Program 
Staff has been coordinating with representatives of the City of Napa and the general 
public with respect to potential annexation of unincorporated islands. Staff recently 
update the Commission’s website to include a new page dedicated entirely to island 
annexation information. A report summarizing the island annexation process with 
maps of each island is included on today’s agenda as item 8a. 
 

• Outside Service Agreements 
There are no current outside service agreement requests at this time. There may be 
future outside service agreement requests from local agencies following adoption 
of a final Countywide Water and Wastewater MSR pursuant to California 
Government Code Section 56133.5.  

 
ATTACHMENT 
 
1) Work Program 2020-2021 Progress Chart 



Timeline Lead Comments
Countywide Water and Wastewater MSR (Comprehensive) 12/18 - 12/20 Consultant See item 7a for possible adoption of a final report
City of St. Helena MSR/SOI (Comprehensive) TBD Staff Will resume at request of City or Commission
Lake Berryessa Resort Improvement District SOI 12/20 - 4/21 Staff Will follow from Water & Wastewater MSR
Napa Berryessa Resort Improvement District SOI 12/20 - 4/21 Staff Will follow from Water & Wastewater MSR
Spanish Flat Water District SOI 12/20 - 4/21 Staff Will follow from Water & Wastewater MSR
Napa Sanitation District SOI 12/20 - 6/21 Staff Will follow from Water & Wastewater MSR
City of Napa MSR/SOI (Comprehensive) 12/20 - 12/21 Staff Will follow from Water & Wastewater MSR

Change of Organization/Reorganization Proposals (3-6/yr) Ongoing Staff No active proposals; see item 6a

Island Annexation Program 7/20 - 12/21 Staff Staff is partnering with City of Napa and Napa County to 
align timing and process for island annexations

Outside Service Agreement Requests (1-2/yr) Ongoing EO & Chair None at this time

Completion Proceedings for Approved Annexations (3-6/yr) Ongoing Staff

Staff continues processing annexations previously 
approved by Commission: terms and conditions, 
Certificates of Completion, GIS mapping, TRA 
determinations, Board of Equalization filings

Conduct LAFCO Outreach; Agencies & Community Groups (6-10/mo) Ongoing Staff Outreach Committee (Kahn & Leary) working on the 
strategies presented to Commission on 8/3/20

Comments on Local Agency Projects (1-2/yr) Ongoing Staff General Plan Updates, EIRs, Strategic Plans, etc.; none at 
this time

Respond to Grand Jury Reports (0-1/yr) Ongoing Staff & 
Commission

Grand Jury recommendations for LAFCO; none at this time

Annual Countywide Update on Housing and General Plans June 2021 Staff 2020 report presented to Commission on 8/3/20

Conduct Informational Workshops & Meetings Ongoing Staff Virtual public workshop on Countywide Water & 
Wastewater MSR held on 7/13/20

Public Records Requests (0-1/yr) Ongoing Staff Requests from the public for specific LAFCO records; one 
recent request involving island annexation communication

Website Maintenance and Updates Ongoing Staff
Meeting info, financial info, policies, public notices, maps, 
staff and Commissioner info, etc.; new page added for 
island annexation info

Social Media: Meetings Notices and Announcements (10-15/yr) Ongoing Staff Meeting info, public notices, press releases, etc.

Expiring Commissioner Terms in 2021 May 2021 Staff
Terms for Commissioners Mohler and Gregory expire on 
5/3/21; staff will present info item on 12/7/20

2021 Chair and Vice Chair Designation May 2021 Staff
Commissioners Dillon and Mohler become Chair and Vice 
Chair, respectively, on 5/3/21; staff will present info item 
on 4/5/21

Statement of Economic Interest (Form 700) April 2021 Secretary Required for all Commissioners & EO upon entering office, 
leaving office, and annually by April 1

Ethics Training Ongoing Secretary Required for all Commissioners & EO every two years

Develop 2021-2022 Budget June 2021 Budget 
Committee

Two Commissioners will be appointed on 12/7/20 to serve 
on FY21-22 Budget Committee

State Legislation Monitoring and Position Letters (2-4/yr) Ongoing Legislative 
Committee

Commissioners Dillon and Mohler serve on Legislative 
Committee; current two-year legislative session ends 
November 2020

Policy Review and Revisions (2-4/yr) Ongoing
Policy 

Committee

Commissioners Mohler and Rodeno serve on Policy 
Committee; Draft SOI Policy is currently under review by a 
technical working group

2019-2020 Audit December 2020 Staff To be prepared by Brown Armstrong and presented by 
Napa County Auditor-Controller

Year-End Contracts Close-Out June 2021 Secretary Close out and re-encumber contracts at end of year

Quarterly Budget Reports (4/yr) Ongoing Staff
Analysis of year-to-date and projected year-end revenues 
and expenses; 1st quarter report for FY 20-21 will be 
presented on 12/7/20

Provide Strategic Plan Updates (2/yr) Ongoing Staff Progress reports presented to Commission twice per year 
(typically February and August meetings)

Verify Median Household Income Data to Identify DUCs June 2021 Staff Staff will review Census Bureau American Community 
Survey data (currently no known DUCs in Napa County)

Develop Work Program June 2021 Staff
Review with Budget Committee in conjunction with budget, 
present in June for adoption, present progress report at 
each regular meeting

Electronic Document Management System Maintenance Ongoing Staff Digitalization of historical and current agency records
Geographic Information System Mapping Updates (3-6/yr) Ongoing Staff GIS boundary layer edits for completed annexations

2020 CALAFCO Annual Conference (Virtual) TBD
Staff & 

Commission

Originally scheduled for 10/21/20 - 10/23/20 in Monterey; 
in-person Conference canceled and replaced with virtual 
sessions

2021 CALAFCO Staff Workshop (Newport Beach) 3/17/21 - 3/19/21 Staff Location: Hyatt Regency John Wayne Airport

Bay Area LAFCO EO Meetings (1-2/yr) Ongoing EO & Analyst
Sharing information with other Bay Area LAFCOs; replaced 
with monthly statewide LAFCO EO teleconference meetings

Monthly Statewide LAFCO EO Teleconference Meetings (26/yr) Ongoing EO & Analyst Sharing information with other LAFCOs statewide

CALAFCO Coastal Region Clerks Meetings (1-2/yr) Ongoing Secretary
Sharing information with the Coastal Region LAFCOs; 
replaced with monthly statewide LAFCO Clerks 
teleconference meetings

Monthly Statewide LAFCO Clerks Teleconference Meetings (12/yr) Ongoing Secretary Sharing information with other LAFCOs statewide

O
TH

ER

October 5, 2020 Progress Report

NAPA LAFCO WORK PROGRAM FY 2020-2021

ST
U

D
IE

S
AP

PL
IC

AT
IO

N
S

PU
BL

IC
 O

U
TR

EA
CH

CO
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
AD

M
IN

IS
TR

AT
IO

N

Attachment One



 

 

Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 

Margie Mohler, Commissioner 
Councilmember, Town of Yountville 
 

Scott Sedgley, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 
 
 

Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 3rd District 

 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

 

Ryan Gregory, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

 

Gregory Rodeno, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

 

Eve Kahn, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 

 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County  
Subdivision of the State of California  
 
 
We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

 

 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 

Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6c (Information) 
 
 
 
TO:    Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
PREPARED BY: Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer 
 
MEETING DATE: October 5, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Executive Officer Report 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
This report is for information only and provides a summary of the Executive Officer’s 
(EO) recent activities as well as other miscellaneous items relevant to the Commission. 
 
Municipal Management Association of Northern California 
 
The Municipal Management Association of Northern California (MMANC) was formed 
in 1950 to address the professional needs of public managers. It is the oldest and one of 
the largest organizations of its kind in the nation. MMANC serves more than 600 
members at various levels of local government organizations (analysts, division 
managers, directors, and assistant managers) across a variety of disciplines (city manager 
offices, parks and recreation, finance, information technology, utilities, human resources, 
police, and fire). The EO recently became a member of MMANC. The annual 
membership fee is $75. MMANC will provide the EO with abundant opportunities to 
build government relationships and enhance leadership and management skills to benefit 
the Commission. Toward this end, the EO registered for the MMANC 2020 virtual 
conference at a cost of $75. The conference spans four days with topics including 
emergency preparedness, values based leadership, tools to bring people together, and the 
future of the workplace. 
 
CALAFCO Legislative Advisory Committee 
 
The EO recently joined CALAFCO’s Legislative Advisory Committee. This group 
consists of staff, legal counsel and CALAFCO Associate Member volunteers. The role of 
the Advisory Committee is to assist CALAFCO’s Legislative Committee on an as-needed 
basis on certain pieces of legislation or legislative projects and to act as an expert 
feedback team. Advisory Committee members are encouraged, but not required, to attend 
the regular Legislative Committee meetings. 
 



Executive Officer Report 
October 5, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 
 
Leadership Napa Valley 
 
The EO recently graduated from Leadership Napa Valley Class 33, which provided 
valuable education and training related to professional development, providing quality 
public service, and building meaningful relationships.  
 
Recent Meetings and Other Activities 
 
Subsequent to the Commission’s regular meeting of August 3, 2020, the EO or Analyst II 
participated in the following notable activities related to LAFCO: 
 

• August 6: Webinar titled “Navigating the Basics and Beyond - LAFCo 101 for 
LAFCo Staff” 

• August 7: Teleconference meeting with Granicus representatives to discuss 
website upgrade options and public outreach strategies 

• August 11: CALAFCO Executive Officers teleconference meeting 
• August 13: Phone call with City of Napa Utilities Director Phil Brun to discuss 

Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review (MSR) 
• August 19: Webinar titled “Is Your Website in Need of a Refresh? 5 Must-Haves 

for an Amazing Digital Presence” 
• August 20: Phone call with representatives for the anticipated Napa Valley 

College property annexation to the Napa Sanitation District 
• August 25: Teleconference meeting with Planeteria to discuss website upgrade 

options to improve smartphone compatibility 
• August 26: Webinar titled “Employee Engagement During COVID-19” 
• September 4: MSR Comments Committee (Vice Chair Dillon and Commissioner 

Mohler) teleconference meeting with consultant to discuss responses to public 
comments received on the draft Countywide Water and Wastewater MSR 

• September 8: CALAFCO Executive Officers teleconference meeting 
• September 9: Phone call with Commissioner Rodeno to discuss various LAFCO 

matters 
• September 9: Phone call with Chair Leary to discuss various LAFCO matters 
• September 9: Phone call with State Water Resources Control Board Drinking 

Water Division to discuss issues relating to private community-serving water 
systems 

• September 10: Meeting with City of Napa Planning and Code Enforcement 
Division Manager Erin Morris to discuss island annexation 

• September 14: Phone call with St. Helena City Manager Mark Prestwich to 
discuss Countywide Water and Wastewater MSR 

• September 14: Webinar titled “Adaptive Leadership in the ‘New Normal’” 



Executive Officer Report 
October 5, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 
 

• September 16: Phone call with County Supervising Planner John McDowell to 
discuss Countywide Water and Wastewater MSR 

• September 17: Phone call with County Supervisor Belia Ramos to discuss the 
City of American Canyon’s water and sewer service areas 

• September 21: Meeting with City of Napa Planning and Code Enforcement 
Division Manager Erin Morris to discuss island annexation 

• September 22: Presentation on LAFCO and the Countywide Water and 
Wastewater MSR to the County Board of Supervisors 

 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 



 

 

Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 

Margie Mohler, Commissioner 
Councilmember, Town of Yountville 
 

Scott Sedgley, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 
 
 

Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 3rd District 

 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

 

Ryan Gregory, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

 

Gregory Rodeno, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

 

Eve Kahn, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 

 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County  
Subdivision of the State of California  
 
 
We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

 

 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 

Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7a (Public Hearing) 
 
 
 
TO:    Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
PREPARED BY: Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer 

Dawn Mittleman Longoria, Analyst II 
 
MEETING DATE: October 5, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Final Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service 

Review and Associated CEQA Findings 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended the Commission take the following actions: 
 

1) Open the public hearing and take testimony; 
 

2) Close the public hearing; 
 

3) Receive and file the final Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service 
Review; 
 

4) Adopt the draft resolution confirming the determinative statements contained therein 
and making CEQA findings (Attachment One). 

 
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY 
 
The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 directs LAFCOs 
to prepare municipal service reviews (MSRs) every five years to inform their other planning 
and regulatory activities. This includes, most notably, preparing and updating all local agencies’ 
spheres of influence as needed. MSRs vary in scope and can focus on a particular agency, 
service, or geographic region as defined by LAFCOs. MSRs may also lead LAFCOs to take 
other actions under its authority such as forming, consolidating, merging, or dissolving one or 
more local agencies. MSRs culminate with LAFCOs making determinations and 
recommendations on a number of factors addressing growth and population trends, 
disadvantaged unincorporated communities, infrastructure needs or deficiencies, financial 
standing, opportunities for shared facilities, and accountability for community service needs as 
required by California Government Code Section 56430. 
 



Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review   
October 5, 2020 
Page 2 of 7 
 
As part of its most recent strategic planning process, the Commission decided to conduct a 
comprehensive, countywide study of public water and wastewater service providers in Napa 
County. The Commission hired a private consultant, Policy Consulting Associates (PCA), to 
prepare the report. PCA is subcontracting with Berkson Associates. PCA developed a project-
specific website to provide opportunities for ongoing interaction with the subject agencies and 
members of the general public. The website is available to the public online at:  
https://sites.google.com/pcateam.com/napamsr/home  
 
The public draft Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review was 
released to the public on May 18, 2020, and was presented to the Commission at a public 
workshop on July 13, 2020. During the presentation, Commissioners were given opportunities 
to ask questions of staff and consultants, and public comments were heard following the 
presentation. Notably, the draft report included several recommendations related to the 
governance structure and shared service opportunities for many of the subject agencies. Written 
comments on the draft report were invited through July 20, 2020. A redline final report was 
released to the public on September 14, 2020, and is available on the Commission’s website at: 
https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/CountywideWaterWastewaterMSR_Redlin
eFinal_9-14-20.pdf. Comments received to date and the associated comment log are also 
available on the website at https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/staff_reports.aspx.  
 
Overview of MSR 
 
The MSR provides a comprehensive review of water, wastewater, and recycled water service 
in Napa County as provided by the following 14 local governmental agencies: 
 

• City of American Canyon 
• City of Calistoga 
• City of Napa 
• City of St. Helena 
• Town of Yountville 
• Circle Oaks County Water District  
• Congress Valley Water District 
• Lake Berryessa Resort 

Improvement District 

• Los Carneros Water District 
• Napa Berryessa Resort 

Improvement District 
• Napa County Flood Control and 

Water Conservation District 
• Napa River Reclamation District 

No. 2109 
• Napa Sanitation District 
• Spanish Flat Water District 

 
Chapter three of the MSR is the “Overview” section and provides information regarding the 
potential effects of drought conditions and climate change on water availability within Napa 
County. With this in mind, the MSR includes several recommendations related to the 
governance structure and shared service opportunities for many of the subject agencies. 
Potential governance structure options for the subject agencies are listed in Figure 3-16. 
Advantages to the identified governance structure options include improvements to water 
supply including recycled water, water management, enhanced resource sharing, efficiency of 
service provision, and regulatory compliance. These recommendations are intended to 
encourage the subject agencies to engage in conversations regarding the feasibility and 
desirability of initiating reorganization proceedings or entering into other formal agreements. 

https://sites.google.com/pcateam.com/napamsr/home
https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/CountywideWaterWastewaterMSR_RedlineFinal_9-14-20.pdf
https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/CountywideWaterWastewaterMSR_RedlineFinal_9-14-20.pdf
https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/staff_reports.aspx


Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review   
October 5, 2020 
Page 3 of 7 
 
The report also summarizes existing regional water and sanitation planning that have proven 
successful. Included are descriptions of studies, management plans, and cooperative efforts 
within Napa County. Regulations governing water and wastewater agencies are provided. Staff 
commends these existing collaborative efforts and encourages continued collaboration.  
 
It is recommended that Napa water purveyors collectively continue discussions regarding 
existing concerns related to the provision of reliable and sustainable water services throughout 
the County. With this in mind, staff recommends the Commission offer an incentive to initiate 
collaborative discussions by providing LAFCO resources. Examples include, but are not limited 
to, LAFCO staff serving as a facilitator to aide these discussions and, if reorganization 
discussions are productive, consider waiving all associated processing costs.  
 
MSR Issues of Interest 
 
A countywide municipal service review can generate controversy. The very nature of a study 
that encompasses numerous entities and interest groups is likely to bring forward a variety of 
opinions, some of which are in conflict. LAFCO is granted considerable statutory authority to 
study and evaluate local governmental issues, but limited authority to resolve those issues. For 
this reason, it is common for MSRs to be the starting point for discussions among all 
stakeholders as they work toward solutions, but not necessarily the ultimate vehicle.  
 
The following is a summary of some of the challenges and concerns associated with the Napa 
Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review. 
 

1) The impacts of climate change warrant proactive solutions: 
Numerous hydrological and climatological studies have warned about the potential 
effects of climate change. In response, Governor Newsom has released the Water 
Resilience Portfolio to help build a climate-resilient water system. The California 
Secretary for Natural Resources, Wade Crowfoot said, “The portfolio identifies how the 
state can help regions maintain and diversify water supplies, protect and enhance natural 
systems and prepare for a future that looks very different from our recent past.”  
 
In the past few months, Napa County has endured a pandemic and wildfires. Local 
conditions and circumstances have drastically changed. The local agencies in Napa 
County have assembled to face these and other countywide issues. The MSR supports 
this collaborative approach to address the possible effects of climate change on the 
availability and provision of water. The report identifies governance structure options 
to consider as one of the solutions. 
 

2) Governance structure options can vary according to the chosen solution: 
Change can be disruptive, but at times the need to solve problems can outweigh the need 
to retain the status quo. The MSR provides a table (Figure 3-16) with possible 
governance options for each agency studied. Those options range from contracts for 
service to reorganization of the agency. These options should be considered by the 
various stakeholders during discussions to achieve solutions. 
 



Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review   
October 5, 2020 
Page 4 of 7 
 

3) A countywide water agency or district has no land use authority: 
It is not within the legal authority of a countywide water agency or district to establish 
land use. This is similar to the Napa Countywide Transportation Program or the Napa 
County Flood Control and Water Conservation District. Some municipalities have 
commented that approvals occur for development within the unincorporated area with 
the need for municipal services. A countywide water agency, for example, could have 
better oversight regarding coordinated management and provision of water resources 
throughout the County regardless of jurisdiction. Safeguards to prevent conversion of 
agricultural land can be included in the policies of a countywide agency. 
 

4) Countywide or regional agencies can be formed to address the needs and budget of the 
specific county: 
It is common for countywide and regional agencies to be formed to address issues such 
as parks and open space, mosquito abatement, resource conservation, transportation, 
flood control, water delivery, or wastewater service. The functions, size, and budget of 
these agencies vary as much as the counties and regions they serve. These agencies do 
not need to take the form of a countywide agency in which all service functions and 
employees are consolidated into one agency. For example, the El Dorado County Water 
Agency is not a water purveyor or retailer, but instead provides regional coordination 
with an annual budget of approximately $7 million and a maximum of five employees 
that is currently tasked with security additional water rights. Another second example is 
the Tahoe Truckee Sanitation Agency (TTSA), which was established by special 
legislation to run a wastewater treatment plant that serves the flows from five individual 
collection districts in Placer and Nevada Counties. TTSA has an annual budget of 
approximately $15 million and 48 employees. Further, the case studies identified in the 
MSR provide other examples of structures in use in other counties that may provide 
guidance, but these examples are neither exhaustive nor directive. 

 
Public Comments on Draft MSR 
 
On August 3, 2020, the Commission discussed the public comments received on the draft MSR. 
All public comments received by that date along with a comment log are available on the 
Commission’s website. The Commission appointed Vice Chair Dillon and Commissioner 
Mohler to an ad hoc subcommittee (“the Committee”) to review the public comments and 
provide direction to the consultants and staff.  
 
On September 4, 2020, the Committee met with the consultants and staff to review the process 
for responding to comments, including any changes to the document. In addition, the Committee 
identified comments of significance to be addressed in the report. These comments generally 
fall within the following four categories: 
 

1) Trucked water policies, and in particular the responsible agency for implementing 
policies and potential for a countywide agency to also implement trucked water policies. 
 

2) Questions and clarifications on concerns of growth and development induced by service 
extension in unincorporated areas within a countywide agency. 



Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review   
October 5, 2020 
Page 5 of 7 
 

3) Request for additional information on private water companies and potential inclusion 
of those water companies in a countywide solution. 
 

4) Letters and verbal comments from the City of American Canyon regarding discussions 
of its service area. 
 

Redline Final MSR and Additional Comments 
 
On September 14, 2020, a redline final MSR was released to the public and is available on the 
Commission’s website. The redline final MSR incorporates revisions to the draft report based 
on the aforementioned comment log and direction from the Committee. 
 
Staff received four sets of written comments on the redline final MSR as of the date of this 
report. Staff recommends the Commission consider the comments and provide direction as 
appropriate for any desired revisions to the finalized report. Please note the Commission may 
simultaneously direct final changes to the report and receive and file the report. The comments 
received on the redline final MSR and recommended responses/changes are summarized below: 
  

1) City of Napa dated September 15, 2020 (Attachment Two) 
The City of Napa confirmed the Carneros Mutual Water Company has activated their 
outside service from the City as approved by the Commission pursuant to California 
Government Code Section 56133.5.  
 
Recommendation:  Include a description of this change in service structure in the 
Overview Chapter in the section covering the non-public water systems. 
 

2) Napa County dated September 17, 2020 (Attachment Three) 
Napa County provided the following comments and requests: 
 

• Remove discussion of joint review process with City of St. Helena regarding 
new vineyard development within municipal watershed. 
 
Recommendation:  The MSR makes no recommendations or determinations 
regarding this content, which was included to recognize a concern of the City.  
No MSR change is recommended. 
 

• Remove discussion of extending City of St. Helena services to Meadowood 
Resort and area south of St. Helena given extension of services to unincorporated 
areas has the potential to undermine and/or circumvent Measures J and P. 
 
Recommendation:  The two areas were added to the discussion to make the 
necessary determinations to enable the use of the California Government Code 
Section 56133.5 pilot program. As defined in the code, this legislation enables 
the extension of municipal services only to (1) existing development or (2) 
planned projects that are included in an approved specific plan as of July 1, 2015, 
thereby protecting agricultural lands. No recommendation is made in the MSR 
regarding the actual extension of services. No MSR change is recommended. 



Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review   
October 5, 2020 
Page 6 of 7 
 

• Provide documentation demonstrating a countywide water agency or district 
would be less expensive or more efficient than current service providers. 
 
Recommendation:  The MSR recommends further analysis after the stakeholders 
determine a desired structure. No MSR change is recommended. 

 
• Clarify how a countywide water agency or district could perform resource 

management, and how resource management is included in scope of MSR. 
 
Recommendation:  The MSR recommends that services of a countywide water 
agency or district should be determined by stakeholders, and the services may 
draw upon examples from other counties tailored to suit Napa County. Resource 
management is integral to services provided by water agencies and therefore is 
an appropriate consideration in the MSR. No MSR change is recommended. 

 
• Remove reference to Calaveras County Water District as a comparable water 

agency or district.  
 
Recommendation:  While the scale of services in Napa differs from Calaveras, 
Calaveras County Water District is included as an example of (1) a county water 
district which conducts water resource management, and (2) a district that 
conducts water resource management on a countywide scale and also provides 
services to small community systems throughout the unincorporated areas while 
the cities manage their own utility systems. No MSR change recommended. 

 
3) City of American Canyon dated September 22, 2020 (Attachment Four) 

The City of American Canyon provided the following comments and requests: 
• Oppose the consideration and possible adoption of the MSR. 
• Reiterate the City’s position that its water service area is incorrectly described 

and depicted in the MSR. 
• Lack of substantive analysis of the MSR under CEQA. 

 
Recommendation: the Commission’s legal counsel and staff researched 
historical documents and actions taken related to the City’s service areas and 
maintain LAFCO’s position as reflected in the MSR is accurate. Toward this 
end, a memo with backup documentation was prepared by legal counsel and is 
included as Attachment Six. 

 
4) Alan Galbraith dated September 23, 2020 (Attachment Five) 

Mr. Galbraith recommends several factual corrections and clarifications to the City of 
St. Helena’s chapter. 
 
Recommendation:  The consultant will work with the commenter and City of St. Helena 
staff to make appropriate edits. 



Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review   
October 5, 2020 
Page 7 of 7 
 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
 
The MSR is exempt from further environmental review under CEQA pursuant to California 
Code of Regulations Section 15306. This finding would be based on the Commission 
determining with certainty the MSR is limited to basic data collection, research, and resource 
evaluation activities, which do not result in a serious or major disturbance to an environmental 
resource. 
 
Recommended Commission Actions 
 
It is recommended the Commission discuss the redline final MSR and consider taking formal 
action as part of a noticed public hearing. The recommended actions are for the Commission to 
(1) receive and file the final report and (2) adopt a resolution confirming the determinative 
statements contained therein and making CEQA findings. The Commission is invited to provide 
direction to the consultants and staff with respect to any desired revisions to the final report or 
resolution considering staff’s recommendations described above.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1) Draft Resolution Approving Determinative Statements and Making CEQA Findings 
2) Comments on Redline Final MSR from the City of Napa (September 15, 2020) 
3) Comments on Redline Final MSR from Napa County (September 17, 2020) 
4) Comments on Redline Final MSR from the City of American Canyon (September 22, 2020) 
5) Comments on Redline Final MSR from Alan Galbraith (September 23, 2020) 
6) Memo: City of American Canyon Water Service Area 
 



 RESOLUTION NO.  _______ 

RESOLUTION OF THE 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NAPA COUNTY 

MAKING DETERMINATIONS 

NAPA COUNTYWIDE WATER AND WASTEWATER 
MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW: 

WHEREAS, the Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County, 
hereinafter referred to as the “Commission”, adopted a schedule to conduct studies of the 
provision of municipal services within Napa County; and 

WHEREAS, a “Municipal Service Review” has been prepared for the public water 
and wastewater service providers pursuant to said schedule and the Cortese-Knox-
Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000, commencing with Section 
56000 of the California Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer designated the geographic area of the 
municipal service review to generally include all lands located in Napa County; and 

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer prepared a written report on the Napa 
Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review, including consideration of 
the adequacy of governmental services provided by the 14 local government agencies in 
Napa County that provide public water and/or wastewater service; and 

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer’s report was presented to the Commission in 
the manner provided by law; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission heard and fully considered all the evidence 
presented at its public meetings concerning the Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater 
Municipal Service Review on July 13, 2020, August 3, 2020, and October 5, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, as part of the municipal service review, the Commission is required 
pursuant to California Government Code Section 56430(a) to make a statement of written 
determinations with regards to certain factors. 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 1 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMISSION DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, 
DETERMINE, AND ORDER as follows: 
  
1. The Commission determines the Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal 

Service Review is exempt from further environmental review under the California 
Environmental Quality Act pursuant to California Code of Regulations Section 15306. 
 

2. The Commission adopts the statement of written determinations prepared as part of the 
Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review set forth in 
“Exhibit A,” which is attached and hereby incorporated by reference. 

 
 The foregoing resolution was duly and regularly adopted by the Commission at a 
public meeting held on October 5, 2020, after a motion by Commissioner____________, 
seconded by Commissioner _______________, by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:  Commissioners __________________________________________ 
 
NOES:  Commissioners  __________________________________________ 
                               
ABSENT: Commissioners  __________________________________________ 
 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners  __________________________________________
                                      
 
        

 
 _______________________________ 

Kenneth Leary 
Commission Chair 

 
ATTEST: _____________________ 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer  

 
 
Recorded by: Kathy Mabry 
  Commission Secretary 
 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 2 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

STATEMENT OF DETERMINATIONS  
 

NAPA COUNTYWIDE WATER AND WASTEWATER 
MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW 

1. Growth and population projections for the affected area (Government Code 
56430(a)(1)): 

 
A. City of American Canyon 

 
1. The City of American Canyon’s population, as of 2019, was approximately 

20,629.  
 

2. American Canyon’s population increased by approximately 10 percent in the 
last 10 years.  
 

3. Future development in the City is limited by the Urban Limit Line (ULL). 
Additionally, growth is constrained by the airport’s flyover zones to the north, 
City of Vallejo to the south, foothills of the Sulphur Springs Mountain Range 
to the east, and the Napa River to the west. Most of the undeveloped area in 
the ULL has been built out. 
 

4. Napa County LAFCO anticipates that the City will grow by about 0.78 
percent a year through 2030 with an anticipated population of 22,398 in 2030.   

 
B. City of Calistoga 

 
1. The City of Calistoga’s population, as of 2019, was approximately 5,453.  

 
2. Calistoga’s population increased by about six percent in the last 10 years.  

 
3. The City manages its growth to maintain its small-town character through the 

Resource Management System and the Growth Management System.  
 

4. Napa County LAFCO anticipates that the City will grow by about 0.61 
percent a year through 2030 with an anticipated population of 5,818 in 2030.   

 
C. City of Napa 

 
1. The City of Napa’s population, as of 2019, was approximately 79,490, with 

the water system serving a total population of 87,134.   
 

2. City of Napa’s population increased by approximately 4.5 percent over the 
10-year period since 2009. 
 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 3 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

3. Future development within the City is limited by the Rural Urban Limit 
(RUL). Most of the undeveloped area in the RUL has been built out.  There 
are 24 territories that are within the RUL that have not yet been annexed into 
the City. Of the property available for development in the RUL, only a portion 
is considered suitable for development due to environmental constraints. 
 

4. LAFCO anticipates a continued steady increase in population over the period 
from 2019 to 2030 of 6.3 percent, with a projected population of 84,513 in 
2030. 

 
D. City of St. Helena 

 
1. The City of St. Helena’s population, as of 2019, was approximately 6,133. 

 
2. Growth within the City is limited by an Urban Limit Line, designated Urban 

Reserve Areas, and the Residential Growth Management System, which 
limits the number of building permits available for residential growth each 
year. That limit, as of 2018, was nine residential units a year, with exceptions. 
 

3. LAFCO anticipates a continued increase in population over the period from 
2019 to 2030 at an annual rate of 0.88 percent, with an anticipated population 
of 6,728 in 2030. 

  
E. Town of Yountville 

 
1. The Town of Yountville’s population, as of 2019, was approximately 2,916, 

with about 30 percent living at the Veteran’s Home. 
 

2. Yountville’s population decreased by approximately one percent over the 10-
year period since 2009. 
 

3. The Town is nearing buildout of developable space, and the potential for 
growth is limited.  The Town estimated there is space remaining for 155 
single-family homes, 76 multi-family residential units, and 169,555 square 
feet of commercial space.  However, actual development will depend on 
future market conditions, property owner preferences, site-specific 
constraints, and other factors. 
 

4. LAFCO anticipates a continued decline in population over the period from 
2019 to 2030 at an annual rate of 0.32 percent, with an anticipated population 
of 2,813 in 2030. 

 
F. Circle Oaks County Water District 

 
1. Circle Oaks County Water District’s (COCWD) population, as of 2019, was 

approximately 471.   

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 4 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

2. Future growth within COCWD is limited to the 143 vacant lots of the 331 lots 
approved in the subdivision. At maximum build-out of the Circle Oaks Unit 
One subdivision, the community would hold an additional 360 persons.  
However, in the past 19 years, there has only been one permit to build a new 
home in the Circle Oaks residential community, and COCWD anticipates a 
continued low demand for future housing. 
 

3. LAFCO anticipates growth within COCWD to be similar to the most recent 
five-year trend of all unincorporated areas of Napa of 0.21 percent annually, 
with an anticipated population of 482 by 2030. 

 
G. Congress Valley Water District 

 
1. Congress Valley Water District’s population, as of 2019, was approximately 

262. 
 

2. CVWD’s population increased by 1.09 percent annually between 2009 and 
2019. 
 

3. While there are some parcels within CVWD that do not currently contain 
developed housing units, there are not a significant number of such 
undeveloped parcels. In combination with the restrictive land uses in the area, 
it is reasonable to assume CVWD’s resident population growth rate over the 
foreseeable future will remain low and not significantly impact the District’s 
demand for water. 
 

4. LAFCO anticipates growth within CVWD to be similar to the most recent 
five-year trend of all unincorporated areas of Napa of 0.21 percent annually, 
with an anticipated population of 268 by 2030. 

 
H. Lake Berryessa Resort Improvement District 

 
No significant increase in current District population and service demand that 
would affect service delivery and infrastructure is anticipated within the timeframe 
of this MSR. 
 

I. Los Carneros Water District 
 

1. Los Carneros Water District’s (LCWD) population, as of 2019, was 
approximately 523. 
 

2. LCWD’s population increased by 0.5 percent annually between 2009 and 
2019. 
 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 5 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

3. Future growth within the District is currently limited due the agricultural 
zoning of the lands within and adjacent to the District, which stipulates 160-
acre minimum parcel sizes.  It is estimated that 52 of the 263 assessor parcels 
are not developed with residences.  However, given historical growth trends 
and the amount of viniculture and Williamson Act contracts within the 
District, very little development within the District is anticipated. 
 

4. Unlike potable water, demand for LCWD’s recycled water is not population 
driven, but rather driven more by the extent of productive agricultural lands 
in use in need of irrigation.  In the case of LCWD, this is generally the 
vineyards.  Within the District’s service area (assessment district), there are 
3,140 irrigable acres. 
 

5. LAFCO anticipates growth within LCWD to be similar to the most recent 
five-year trend of all unincorporated areas of Napa of 0.21 percent annually, 
with an anticipated population of 562 by 2030. 

 
J. Napa Berryessa Resort Improvement District 

 
No significant increase in current District population and service demand that 
would affect service delivery and infrastructure is anticipated within the timeframe 
of this MSR. 

 
K. Napa County Flood Control and Water Conservation District 

 
The District’s boundaries and service population corresponds to Napa County’s 
area and population, anticipated to grow at an average rate of about 0.5 percent 
annually.  

 
L.  Napa River Reclamation District No. 2109 

 
No significant increase in current District population and service demand that 
would affect service delivery and infrastructure is anticipated within the timeframe 
of this MSR. 

 
M.  Napa Sanitation District 

 
1. Napa Sanitation District’s population, as of 2019, was approximately 83,061. 

 
2. NapaSan’s population increased by 0.57 percent annually between 2012 and 

2017. 
 

3. NapaSan plans to serve three new developments and has provided Will Serve 
letters for Stanly Ranch, Montalcino Napa Valley, and the Napa Pipe Project.  
Combined these projects would add two resorts, 1,015 housing units, a 
winery, and commercial/retail space. 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 6 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

4. LAFCO anticipates continued growth within NapaSan similar to the most 
recent five-year trend of 0.57 percent annually, with an anticipated population 
of 88,128 by 2030. 

 
N.  Spanish Flat Water District 

 
1. Spanish Flat Water District’s (SFWD) population, as of 2019, was 

approximately 413. 
 

2. Given the impacts of the Lightning Complex fires, as of August 2020, the 
District’s population is significantly lower. 

 
3. The buildout population within SFWD is expected to total 560. This 

projection assumes the development of all undeveloped lots presently within 
SFWD and rebuilding of the recently destroyed homes.  Although the 
undeveloped lots gradually get developed, some do not connect to the 
District’s utility systems. The District expects slow growth in the next five to 
10 years. 

 
4. LAFCO anticipates growth within SFWD to be similar to the most recent five-

year trend of all unincorporated areas of Napa of 0.21 percent annually, with 
an anticipated population of 423 by 2030. 

 
2. The Location and Characteristics of Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities 

Within or Contiguous to the Agency’s SOI (Government Code 56430(a)(2)): 
 

According to Napa LAFCO’s definition of disadvantaged unincorporated communities 
(DUCs), there are currently no DUCs in Napa County. 
 

3. Present and Planned Capacity of Public Facilities and Adequacy of Public Services, 
Including Infrastructure Needs and Deficiencies (Government Code 56430(a)(3)): 

 
A. City of American Canyon 

 
1. The City of American Canyon purchases water from the State Water Project 

and the City of Vallejo. Water supply is considered to be adequate to meet 
American Canyon’s current needs.  

 
2. The City supplements its water supply with recycled water. Recycled water 

is mostly used for vineyard and landscape irrigation. Potable water demand 
for landscape irrigation is expected to decline as the City expands its recycled 
water distribution system. In order to meet the projected buildout recycled 
water demands, the City will need to reuse 100 percent of its treated water 
during peak demands in the summer months. 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 7 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

3. The City’s combined projected water supplies are sufficient to meet projected 
demands during normal water year conditions. Under single-dry water year 
conditions, the supply is generally sufficient until sometime after 2030 when 
shortfalls begin to appear. By 2035, the single-dry year shortfall is estimated 
at approximately six percent. Under multiple-dry year conditions, the supply 
is sufficient through 2040. 

 
4. There City’s Water Treatment Plant (WTP) has sufficient capacity to 

accommodate current peak day demand and projected peak day demand at 
buildout. 

 
5. There is a current storage shortfall of 4.0 mg. At buildout, the storage shortfall 

increases to a total of 6.8 mg. 
 

6. The City’s water distribution infrastructure was reported to be in fair 
condition. However, over the five-year period, the City experienced a decline 
in main breaks, which is reflected in the decrease in water loss experienced 
over that same time period. 

 
7. The City appropriately plans for its infrastructure needs in the Capital 

Improvement Plan. The main planned capital improvement projects address 
insufficient water storage capacity, pipeline deterioration, and pipelines that 
are undersized for the current conditions and fire flow requirements. The City 
is also expanding the recycled water system.    

 
8. American Canyon has adequate capacity to accommodate existing and 

projected demand at its wastewater treatment plant.   
 

9. The hydraulic evaluation identified a number of deficiencies with the current 
sewer collection system including pipelines and pump stations with 
insufficient hydraulic capacity to convey peak flows for existing and/or future 
conditions. All of the existing capacity deficiencies are related to I/I entering 
the system in that pipes have adequate capacity to handle peak dry weather 
flows, but not peak wet weather flows. The City has planned a number of 
capital improvement projects to address the I/I concerns.  

 
10. The level of wastewater services offered by the City was found to be adequate 

based on integrity of the wastewater collection system and regulatory 
compliance. The City’s sanitary sewer overflow rate is lower on average than 
of other wastewater agencies in California. The City didn’t experience any 
violations in the last three years; and there have been no priority violations in 
at least last 10 years.  

 
 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 8 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

B. City of Calistoga  
 

1. Although water supply from Kimball Reservoir declined, Calistoga was able 
to replace the lost supply with the water delivered by the City of Napa. 
Depending on the availability, Calistoga is able to purchase additional water 
from the City of Napa in emergencies. Water supply is considered to be 
adequate to meet Calistoga’s current needs.  
 

2. Based on the City’s existing local reservoir and the State Water project 
supply, the City does not expect to experience any reductions in water supply 
during minor drought conditions and expects to experience only minor 
reductions in water supply during severe droughts.   
 

3. Calistoga currently has excess water supply available for future development. 
Estimates show that by 2034, the City will be using between 26 and 54 percent 
of this excess availability. Due to the Growth Management System and the 
Resource Management System, the City is projected to grow at a fairly 
predictable pace, and the current available water supply will be able to 
accommodate future needs, at least through 2034. 
 

4. The City currently reuses about 60 percent of its wastewater flows. Recycled 
water from the WWTP is distributed to 15 customers through recycled water 
infrastructure.  
 

5. The City appropriately plans for its infrastructure needs in the Capital 
Improvement Plan. The most significant long-term planned infrastructure 
project is the upgrade of the Kimball Water Treatment Plant. No unplanned 
for water infrastructure needs were identified.   
 

6. Calistoga has adequate capacity to accommodate existing and projected 
demand at its wastewater treatment plant.  It is estimated that 71 percent of 
the plant’s excess capacity will be allocated by 2034.    
 

7. The level of wastewater services offered by the City were found to be 
marginally adequate based on the integrity of the wastewater collection 
system and regulatory compliance. 
 

8. The City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant encountered multiple violations and 
enforcement actions in recent years, most of which were related to 
dichlorobromomethane limits. The City reported that this issue had been 
addressed as of 2019. 
 
 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 9 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

9. The City identifies the current Cease and Desist Order (CDO) and strict 
Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) Permit Conditions 
imposed with the 2016 renewal of the City’s permit to operate a WWTP as 
the basis of its main infrastructure needs and costs related to wastewater 
services. 
 

10. The City’s sanitary sewer overflow rate is lower on average than of other 
wastewater agencies in California. Although there is still a lot of old 
infrastructure that causes high infiltration and inflow, Calistoga continues to 
repair and replace old pipelines and other infrastructure thus further reducing 
I/I and overflows.  

 
C. City of Napa 

 
1. The City’s water production has been well within its water supply capacity, 

even in dry years, indicating that the exiting water supply is adequate to meet 
City of Napa’s current needs.   
 

2. Future supply capacity is generally sufficient until sometime after 2035 when 
total demand is nearly equivalent to the volume available in a single-dry year.  
However, the City has conservatively estimated available State Water Project 
(SWP) supply assuming no Carryover, Article 21, North of Delta Allocation 
bonus, or any of the other supplemental SWP categories.  It is likely that the 
City’s water supply will be sufficient beyond 2035 for both normal and dry 
years, depending on the availability of the supplemental SWP supply. 
 

3. The level of water services offered by the City were found to be more than 
adequate based on integrity of the water distribution system and compliance 
with drinking water requirements. The integrity of the City’s water 
distribution system is excellent as measured by the degree of annual water 
loss and the rate of main breaks and leaks per 100 miles of main. The City 
was in full compliance with Primary Drinking Water Regulations in 2018.  
While the City had six violations reported by the EPA since 2008; the City 
has adjusted its treatment mechanism and has had no violations since 2016. 
 

4. The City appropriately plans for its infrastructure needs in the Capital 
Improvement Plan and a 20-year Master Plan. No substantial or unplanned 
for water infrastructure needs were identified.   
 

5. The City is scheduled to develop a Capital Improvement Master Plan and 
corresponding Financing Plan in 2021.  This document will inform the cost 
of service study associated with the rate setting process in 2022. 
 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 10 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

6. Long-term capital plans include upgrades to the Hennessey WTP and 
modifications to the Lake Hennessey spillway will be constructed to 
accommodate the maximum probable flood.  The City is considering 
modifications to the Milliken WTP so that Milliken Reservoir could be used 
as a source year-round. The City reviews possible additional water supply 
sources on a continual basis. 

 
D. City of St. Helena 

 
1. Experience has shown that the City has inadequate water to supply customer 

demand without imposition of water emergency restrictions in recent years. 
The City needs to obtain new water supplies and/or achieve more water 
savings, even under current conditions in order to reliably meet current and 
future water demand.  
 

2. There are new water sources that the City is considering adding in the near 
future to increase the reliability of supply, especially in emergencies and dry 
years, including recycled water and groundwater from the capped well on the 
Adams Street property. 
 

3. The level of water services offered by the City were found to be adequate 
based on integrity of the water distribution system and compliance with 
drinking water requirements.  The integrity of the City’s water distribution 
system is moderate; although the City experiences a relatively high rate of 
water loss, there are few main breaks and leaks.  The City was in full 
compliance with Primary Drinking Water Regulations in 2018 and has 
addressed the three violations reported by the EPA since 2008. 
 

4. The City appropriately plans for its infrastructure needs in the Capital 
Improvement Plan. Long-term significant water infrastructure needs consist 
of identification of a supplemental water source, construction of recycled 
water infrastructure, and replacement of aged portions of the distribution 
system susceptible to high rates of loss. 
 

5. St. Helena has more than adequate capacity to accommodate existing and 
projected demand at its wastewater treatment plant beyond 2030 under all 
anticipated load conditions.  
 

6. The level of wastewater services offered by the City were found to be 
marginally adequate based on integrity of the wastewater collection system 
and regulatory compliance.  The City has struggled with a higher than 
statewide average rate of sanitary sewer overflows, as a result of infiltration 
and inflow during wet weather periods.  Additionally, the City has had 
numerous violations and enforcement actions at its WWTP. The City is in the 
midst of addressing the regulatory issues at the WWTP. 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 11 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

7. The most significant infrastructure need for the wastewater system is 
improvement to the WWTP to meet the requirements set forth in the Cease 
and Desist Order.  The City is in the process of developing a funding plan for 
the improvements.  

 
E. Town of Yountville 

 
1. Given the willingness of the California Department of Veterans Affairs 

(CDVA) to sell surplus water to the Town and the Town’s designated 
emergency water supplies, the water supply is adequate to meet Yountville’s 
current needs.   
 

2. Since projected demand at buildout is only slightly higher than current 
demand, and supply sources have been reliable and adequate to accommodate 
demand, it is anticipated that the Town’s current water supply will be able to 
accommodate future needs. However, this assertion relies heavily on the 
sustainability of services offered by the CDVA at the reservoir and the 
treatment plant.  Close coordination between the two agencies is essential to 
ensuring adequate supply to the municipality. 
 

3. In 2018 the Town beneficially reused 93 percent of its wastewater flow.  
There is no additional recycled water capacity to further supplement/offset 
the Town’s water supply. 
 

4. The level of water services offered by the Town were found to be more than 
adequate based on integrity of the water distribution system and compliance 
with drinking water requirements. The integrity of the Town’s water 
distribution system is excellent as measured by the degree of annual water 
loss and the rate of main breaks and leaks per 100 miles of main. The Town 
was in full compliance with Primary Drinking Water Regulations in 2018 and 
has had no violations reported by the EPA since 2008. 
 

5. The Town appropriately plans for its infrastructure needs in the Capital 
Improvement Plan. No substantial or unplanned for water infrastructure needs 
were identified.   
 

6. Yountville has more than adequate capacity to accommodate existing and 
projected demand at its wastewater treatment plant.  Over the last five years, 
the Town has made use of 66 percent on average of the available treatment 
capacity at its plant.   
 
 
 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 12 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

7. The level of wastewater services offered by the Town were found to be 
minimally adequate based on integrity of the wastewater collection system 
and regulatory compliance. The Town has struggled with a higher than 
statewide average rate of sanitary sewer overflows, as a result of infiltration 
and inflow during wet weather periods, which has been a focus of the Town’s 
capital improvement efforts in recent years. 
 

8. As a result of infiltration and inflow reductions measures, the Town reported 
that it has seen decreases in flows during large storm events.  However, the 
CDVA-operated collection system at the Veterans Home continues to have a 
high peaking factor and has neared its allocation at the wastewater treatment 
facility during wet weather events.  There is a need for a proactive approach 
on the part of the CDVA to minimize the load on the treatment plant. 

  
F. Circle Oaks County Water District 

 
1. COCWD has limited water supply and treatment capacity that marginally 

meets the needs of the community. 
  

2. Several challenges constrain the District's water supply capacity, including 1) 
lack of a suitable location for another well, 2) the spring water source can be 
drawn down quickly, 3) high usage per connection, and 4) high iron content 
in wells requiring the need to backwash. 
 

3. The level of water services offered by the COCWD were found to be adequate 
based on integrity of the water distribution system and compliance with 
drinking water requirements.  The integrity of the District’s water distribution 
system has improved since 2016 when there were several breaks and leaks in 
the system. The District was in full compliance with Primary Drinking Water 
Regulations in 2018 and has had no violations reported by the EPA since 
2008. 
 

4. Given that COCWD made substantial improvements to the water system in 
recent years, there are no known issues with the distribution system at this 
time.  The water treatment system is in good condition; however, the water 
treatment system will need to be expanded should any new connections be 
considered, or the District will need to institute greater conservation measures 
during summer months.  Additionally, another well will be necessary to meet 
future demand needs and to provide a second, redundant, and reliable source 
of water. 
 

5. During dry periods, the District is typically well within its treatment capacity.  
However, during wet weather periods flows have reached levels of concern.   
 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 13 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

6. The level of wastewater services offered by COCWD were found to be 
minimally adequate based on integrity of the wastewater collection system 
and regulatory compliance.  The District has had no sanitary sewer overflows 
in the last five years, but has had 49 violations, a majority of which were for 
deficient reporting.  Significant improvement can be made to the District’s 
reporting practices. 
 

7. Capital improvement needs are planned for on an as needed basis.  COCWD 
reported a need to reline more of the collection system to address root 
infiltration.  The District did not identify infrastructure needs associated with 
the treatment facility. 

 
G. Congress Valley Water District 

 
1. The City of Napa’s sources of water supply are sufficient to continue to 

provide service to CVWD’s service area and other areas served by the City of 
Napa. 
 

2. Based on recent and projected water demands, there is sufficient water supply 
available to serve all properties located within the Water Supply Contract 
service area, including existing and anticipated development. 
 

3. The level of water services offered by the City of Napa were found to be more 
than adequate based on integrity of the water distribution system and 
compliance with drinking water requirements.  The integrity of the City’s 
water distribution system and the CVWD distribution system is excellent as 
measured by the degree of annual water loss and the rate of main breaks and 
leaks per 100 miles of main. The City was in full compliance with Primary 
Drinking Water Regulations in 2018.  While the City had six violations 
reported by the EPA since 2008; the City has adjusted its treatment 
mechanism and has had no violations since 2016. 
 

4. No known infrastructure needs were identified with regards to CVWD’s 
water distribution system. 
 

5. It is recommended that CVWD and the City ensure that the capital needs of 
the distribution system are planned for in appropriate capital planning 
documents. CVWD reports that it is “actively engaged with consultants and 
engineers to identify additional capital outlays...”. 

 
H. Lake Berryessa Resort Improvement District 

 
1. The District has undertaken major upgrades to its water and wastewater 

system since the 2011 MSR identified significant infrastructure needs. 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 14 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

2. Ongoing improvements to replace aging infrastructure and to upgrade 
facilities are planned and/or underway. 

 
I. Los Carneros Water District 

 
1. NapaSan’s recycled water supply is sufficient to continue to provide the 

committed volume to LCWD’s service area.  In 2018, LCWD made use of 53 
percent of its allocated contract supply volume. 
 

2. Engineers conducted hydraulic analyses to determine and assure that the 
pipeline has sufficient capacity to serve the 107 connections in the LCWD 
assessment district. 
 

3. While there is interest from other landowners in the District but outside the 
assessment district to connect to the system, the true extent of available 
capacity will only be realized once most or all of the assessment district 
connections have connected to the system. 
 

4. The level of recycled water services offered by NapaSan were found to be 
more than adequate based on integrity of the recycled water distribution 
system and compliance with water treatment requirements.  The integrity of 
NapaSan’s distribution system is excellent as measured by the degree of 
annual water loss and the rate of main breaks and leaks per 100 miles of main. 
The District met the treatment standards established by CDPH every day in 
2018.  
 

5. LCWD’s system was constructed just four years ago, and there are no known 
infrastructure needs at this time.  However, there may be a need for expansion 
of the system, as several additional landowners have expressed interest in 
connecting subsequent to the formation of the assessment district.  As 
mentioned, the ability to accommodate additional parcels will be assessed 
once most assessment district parcels have connected. 

 
J. Napa Berryessa Resort Improvement District 

 
1. The District has undertaken major upgrades to its water and wastewater 

system since the 2011 MSR identified significant infrastructure needs. 
 

2. Ongoing improvements to replace aging infrastructure and to upgrade 
facilities are planned and/or underway. 

 
K. Napa County Flood Control and Water Conservation District 

 
The District does not own public facilities that directly provide water or wastewater 
services, but does provide planning, technical support and financial assistance to 
other agencies and communities with infrastructure needs. 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 15 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

L. Napa River Reclamation District No. 2109 
 

1. Current wastewater capacity and services are adequate. The District 
anticipates the need to replace aging facilities including its siphon in the near 
future. 
 

2. NRRD is in the process of studying its reclamation needs and engaging the 
community in discussions about alternatives for future reclamation funding, 
facilities and services to address concerns about potential flood risks. 

 
M. Napa Sanitation District 

 
1. At present, demand for recycled water is well within capacity of the treatment 

plant.  In 2018, 2,222 acre-feet of recycled water was produced, which 
constitutes 60 percent of the plant’s maximum production capacity of 3,700 
acre-feet during irrigation season.  Demand for recycled water is anticipated 
to continue to rise in the coming years, reaching the maximum supply 
capacity of 3,700 acre-feet by 2030. 
 

2. The level of recycled water services offered by NapaSan were found to be 
more than adequate based on integrity of the recycled water distribution 
system and compliance with water treatment requirements.  The integrity of 
NapaSan’s distribution system is excellent as measured by the degree of 
annual water loss and the rate of main breaks and leaks per 100 miles of main. 
The District met the treatment standards established by CDPH every day in 
2018. 
 

3. NapaSan appropriately plans for its recycled water infrastructure needs in a 
10-year Capital Improvement Plan. Over the next 10 years through FY 27-28, 
planned major capital improvements include the Kirkland Recycled Water 
Pipeline Rehabilitation, the North Bay Water Reuse Project, a third water 
reservoir, Phase 2 expansion of the recycled water system, and an upgrade of 
a Soscol pump station. 
 

4. NapaSan has more than adequate capacity to accommodate existing and 
projected demand at its wastewater treatment plant.  In 2018, NapaSan made 
use of 40 percent of the available treatment capacity at its plant.   
 

5. In 2017, the third wettest year on record, the District’s system experienced a 
peaking factor of approximately eight, which is indicative of a high level of 
infiltration and inflow (I/I).  The District exceeded the wet weather capacity 
of its collection system at that time.  The level of I/I in the collection system 
is the primary capacity constraint for NapaSan.  NapaSan is aware of the I/I 
and has initiated a long-term targeted program to address problem areas. 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 16 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

6. The level of wastewater services offered by NapaSan were found to be 
adequate based on integrity of the wastewater collection system and 
regulatory compliance.  Addressing the I/I issues will improve the level of 
service offered by the District. 

 
N. Spanish Flat Water District 

 
1. A majority of SFWD’s utility systems in Spanish Flat were destroyed in the 

Lightning Complex fires in August 2020.  The utility systems in Berryessa 
Pines remain intact and operational. The District plans to rebuild of the 
destroyed system as soon as possible. The determinations regarding SFWD 
are based on existing circumstances before the fire. 
 

2. SFWD has ample supply entitlement and system capacity to accommodate 
current as well as projected demands. In 2018, the District made use of 31 
percent of its water contract entitlement and at buildout is anticipated to use 
47 percent of its entitlement. 
 

3. The full delivery of SFWD’s entitlement is considered reliable given the 
current and historical storage levels at Lake Berryessa relative to the location 
of the intake systems. 
 

4. The level of water services offered by SFWD were found to be minimally 
adequate based on integrity of the water distribution system and compliance 
with drinking water requirements. The integrity of the District’s water 
distribution system is sufficient given the estimated level of water loss. The 
District was in full compliance with Primary Drinking Water Regulations in 
2018 and has had one violation reported by the EPA since 2008. 
 

5. The 2011 MSR identified that there is a distribution system capacity issue 
associated with deficient storage within the initial pressure zone.  This issue 
has not been addressed to date. 
 

6. The District is working to purchase generators to continue water production 
during electrical outages. 
 

7. Based on current operations, the Spanish Flat Water District’s sewer systems 
appear to have adequate collection, treatment, and discharge capacities to 
meet existing service demands within its jurisdiction under normal 
conditions. However, the District does not have any records identifying the 
design capacities for either sewer system. This prevents the District from 
accurately estimating its capacity to service new growth for either of its two 
service communities.  
 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 17 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

8. The level of wastewater services offered by SFWD were found to be 
minimally adequate based on integrity of the wastewater collection system 
and regulatory compliance.  The District has had no sanitary sewer overflows 
in the last five years, but has had 31 violations, a majority of which were for 
deficient reporting.  Significant improvement can be made to the District’s 
reporting practices. 
 

9. SFWD does not adopt a Capital Improvement Plan. All capital improvements 
are performed as needed. The District reported that there are currently no 
infrastructure needs related to the wastewater systems. 

 
4. Financial Ability of Agencies to Provide Services (Government Code 56430(a)(4)): 

 
A. City of American Canyon 

 
1. American Canyon has the ability to continue providing water and wastewater 

services. Combined utility reserves appear to be adequate for ongoing 
operations of water and wastewater, however, the Water Operations Fund 
unrestricted net position is only $100,000 which is low compared to annual 
operating expenditures. 
 

2. From FY17 to FY18 the value of capital assets declined, indicating that 
investments were not keeping pace with depreciation. The City’s Five-Year 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) identifies future needs, costs and source 
of funding, but does not identify the projected funding available or shortfalls 
in funding, if any. 
 

3. The City recently adopted rate increases beginning in FY18 anticipated to 
improve balances and help to maintain investments in capital assets. 
 

4. The City evaluates its cost of service as needed to revise its rates and help 
fund its 5-year CIP. The CIP is not updated annually. 

 
B. City of Calistoga  

 
1. The City of Calistoga has the ability to continue providing water and 

wastewater services. Water and wastewater revenues were insufficient to 
cover operations and debt service in FY18, however FY19 was anticipated to 
end with a slight surplus after debt as rates were updated and increased in 
FY18 to address shortfalls. 
 

2. Utilities met and exceeded their reserve goal of 20 percent reserves. 
Wastewater operations liquidity exceeded a minimum 1.0 ratio of current 
assets to current liabilities, and its net position was positive.  

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 18 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

3. Current water operations assets, however, were exceeded by current 
liabilities, reducing water operations liquidity to less than a 1.0 ratio; the water 
operation’s net position was negative at the end of FY18, reflecting liabilities 
exceeding net capital assets. 
 

4. Combined utility rates approach a maximum of 5 percent of median 
household incomes and may exceed the measure with future rate increases, 
depending on growth in household incomes. 
 

5. During FY19 the City’s General Fund transferred $250,000 to assure that debt 
service coverage requirements were met; a portion of that transfer has since 
been repaid. 
 

6. Investments in utility capital assets equaled or exceeded annual depreciation, 
indicating that the City is generally keeping pace with depreciation of 
facilities. 
 

7. The City reviews and updates its rates regularly based on cost of service 
studies and CIP forecasts.  

 
C. City of Napa 

 
1. The City of Napa has the ability to continue providing water services. 

Projected water operations shortfalls anticipated for FY17 through FY19 were 
more than offset by rate increases adopted during FY17. 

 
2. The City allocates net revenues to a number of reserves for operations, capital 

and rate stabilization. Ending fund balances, net position and liquidity 
measures are all positive and indicate a stable position. 

 
3. From FY17 to FY18 the value of net capital assets increased, indicating that 

investments were keeping pace with, or exceeding, depreciation. The City’s 
cost of service studies are the basis for rate adjustments that include capital 
facility needs.  

 
D. City of St. Helena 

 
1. The City of St. Helena has the ability to continue providing water and 

wastewater services. The FY19 budget’s positive annual utility balances  
indicated that its utilities were beginning to stabilize due to recently adopted 
rate increases, after several years of financial stress. 

 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 19 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

2. The City appears to have adequate reserves, although in FY19 it was not 
meeting its adopted reserve targets. The unrestricted net position of both 
utilities were significantly positive. 

 
3. Combined utility rates are well below maximum standards. The City adopted 

new rate schedules in December 2017 to address anticipated water operations 
shortfalls and to fund needed wastewater improvements and regulatory 
requirements. 

 
4. Recent and planned capital improvement expenditures equal or exceed 

average annual depreciation, indicating that the City is keeping pace with 
infrastructure depreciation. 

 
5. The City based its updated utility rate schedule adopted in December 2017 on 

a revised 2016 cost of service study that included long-range forecasts of 
operating and capital needs. 

 
E. Town of Yountville 

 
1. The Town of Yountville has the ability to continue providing water and 

wastewater services. While the Town’s operating revenues exceed 
expenditures for FY16 through FY19, surpluses did not fully cover capital 
improvement and capital recovery costs. Rate increases beginning in FY18 
were anticipated to cover capital projects and maintain reserves for the five-
year period of rate increases. 

 
2. Utility liquidity measures and unrestricted net positions are both positive.  
 
3. Combined utility rates fall within accepted thresholds. The Town adopted 

new utility rate schedules implemented in FY18 based on cost of service 
studies that included operations, debt services and capital improvement needs. 

 
4. FY18 financial reports showed a decline in utility net asset value, indicating 

that the Town was not keeping pace with infrastructure depreciation. 
However, rate increases beginning in FY18 should help to provide ongoing 
capital funding. 

 
F. Circle Oaks County Water District 

 
1. The Circle Oaks County Water District has the ability to continue providing 

water and wastewater services. The FY19 budget shows revenues exceeding 
operating expenditures; however, the surplus is not sufficient to cover 
depreciation expense, indicating that the District may have difficulty fully 
funding capital repair and replacement. 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 20 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

2. Combined utility rates are well below maximum standards. 
 
3. The District’s positive liquidity ratio and unrestricted net position 

demonstrate adequate reserves, although declining net asset value and net 
annual surpluses that are less than depreciation (see above) indicate a 
potential need for increased capital funding. 

 
4. The District has no capital improvement program, no cost of service or rate 

study, and no long-term projections to provide the basis for determining future 
operating and capital needs. 

 
G. Congress Valley Water District 

 
1. The CVWD relies on the City of Napa for the provision of water; the City 

bills District customers directly for water and retains all revenues, and the 
City is responsible for all operations, maintenance and capital planning. 
 

2. The District relies primarily on property tax to fund District administrative 
costs. These costs vary annually depending on needs for engineering and 
financial biennial auditing services. The FY19 budget showed a $40,000 
shortfall, largely due to funding of a portion of customer’s water bills to pay 
for the difference between the City’s rates for residents vs. non-residents. The 
shortfall was funded by reserves. 
 

3. The District’s cash balance and unrestricted net position appear to be more 
than adequate as operational reserves; however, future capital needs are 
unknown. 
 

4. The net value of the District’s capital assets showed no additions in FY18, 
and the net value declined by nine percent. The District has no capital plan, 
and the City’s capital plans do not explicitly identify District needs or future 
costs.  

 
H. Lake Berryessa Resort Improvement District 

 
1. The District has benefited from loans provided by the County which it has 

been unable to fully repay to-date. 
 

2. A recent rate review and forecast indicated that rate increases were not 
required during the five-year forecast period; however, capital improvements 
and County loan repayment were not explicitly included in the forecast.  
 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 21 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

3. Current rates exceed typical burden measures compared to resident incomes. 
The area has been designated as a Disadvantaged Community, which is 
provided a significant amount of low or no-cost funding and grants. 
 

4. The District appears to have adequate reserves to fund operations, however, 
the lack of a five-year capital plan precludes a determination as to the 
adequacy of rates and reserves to fund future improvements. 

 
I. Los Carneros Water District 

 
1. All recycled water operations are managed by NapaSan, which bills District 

customers directly for services. NapaSan owns the distribution system which 
was funded by a combination of grants and assessment debt secured by 
District property owners. 
 

2. The District’s revenues consist almost entirely of benefit assessments. The 
majority of the assessments pay for debt service that funded system 
construction; a small portion of the assessment revenue pays for District 
operations costs. 
 

3. The District maintains adequate reserves for annual administrative costs and 
retains a restricted fund to include required debt service reserves.  
 

4. The District’s Capital Improvement Fund’s balance was zero at the end of 
FY19. Since the system is owned and maintained by NapaSan, there is no 
need for District capital reserves. 

 
J. Napa Berryessa Resort Improvement District 

 
1. The District’s net surplus does not fully cover annual depreciation, indicating 

that the District may have difficulty accumulating adequate funds for future 
capital repair and replacement. 
 

2. A recent rate review and forecast indicated that rate increases were required 
during the five-year forecast period; capital improvements were not explicitly 
included in the forecast.  
 

3. Current rates approach maximum typical burden measures compared to 
resident incomes.  
 

4. The District appears to have adequate reserves relative to operating costs, 
however, the lack of a five-year capital plan precludes a determination as to 
the adequacy of rates and reserves to fund future improvements. 

 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 22 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

K.  Napa County Flood Control and Water Conservation District 
 

1. The District provides “conduit” services to obtain and direct financial 
resources to infrastructure and service needs of other agencies and 
communities. 
 

2. The District does not receive a share of property tax and has no ongoing 
sources of funding other than project grants and pass-throughs of 
subcontractor payments. 

 
L. Napa River Reclamation District No. 2109 

 
1. NRRD has the ability to continue providing wastewater services. Reserves 

appear to be sufficient to fund anticipated repair and replacement of aging 
infrastructure, however, NRRD does not have a CIP or other plan to identify 
future capital needs and funding sources. 
 

2. The expansion of reclamation services depends on additional funding such as 
assessments, which are currently being discussed by NRRD with the 
community. 

 
M. Napa Sanitation District 

 
1. NapaSan has the ability to continue providing wastewater services. Revenues 

exceed expenditures (including debt) by about $10 million, or almost 50 
percent of expenditures.  
 

2. The District allocates net revenues to reserves, which exceed minimum 
targets, and to capital improvements. Ending fund balances, net position and 
liquidity measures are all positive and indicate a stable position. 
 

3. NapaSan established a five-year schedule of rate increases through FY21. 
Current rates are well below maximum burdens given median household 
incomes in the District. 
 

4. The District’s increase in net capital assets in FY18 exceeded depreciation. 
The District maintains and regularly updates its 10-year capital improvement 
plan that includes anticipates costs and available funding. The District 
generally has funded the Plan each year consistent with the needs identified 
in the Plan.  

 
 
 
 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 23 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

N. Spanish Flat Water District 
 

1. The Spanish Flat Water District has the ability to continue providing water 
and wastewater services. However, the value of its infrastructure is 
depreciating at a rate greater than can be covered by its budget surplus. The 
assets declined with no offsetting investment. 
 

2. The District appears to have adequate liquidity and operating reserves, 
although declining net asset value and net annual surpluses that are less than 
depreciation (see above) indicate a potential need for increased capital 
funding. 
 

3. The value of the District’s depreciated infrastructure is less than 50 percent 
of initial value, indicating the potential need for capital improvements. The 
District has no capital improvement program, no cost of service or rate study, 
and no long-term projections to provide the basis for determining future 
operating and capital needs. 

 
5. Status of, and Opportunities for, Shared Facilities (Government Code 56430(a)(5)): 

 
A. City of American Canyon 

 
1. American Canyon shares interconnections with the cities of Vallejo and Napa.  

 
2. The City is a member of the Sites Reservoir Project, which is a potential future 

water supply source in Colusa County. Among the few dozen other 
participants are Los Angeles, Sacramento, San Bernardino, Antelope Valley 
and Santa Clara. 
 

3. The City has considered and will continue to consider opportunities for water 
exchanges or transfers with water right holders, if opportunities present 
themselves at the right price and under acceptable terms and conditions. 
 

4. American Canyon closely collaborates and exchanges information with Napa 
Sanitation District.  

 
B. City of Calistoga  

 
1. The City participates in the Bay Area Integrated Regional Water Management 

Plan (IRWMP). The City additionally is participating in a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) among Napa County municipal water purveyors to 
develop a drought contingency plan. 
 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 24 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

2. Calistoga shares an interconnection with the City of Napa through which the 
City of Calistoga receives potable treated water from the City of Napa on a 
regular basis and in case of emergencies. 
 

3. The City does not share wastewater infrastructure with other agencies.  Due 
to the distance between the municipal systems, no opportunities for facility 
sharing were identified. 

 
C. City of Napa 

 
1. The City shares interconnections with Calistoga, St. Helena, American 

Canyon, Yountville, and the California Veterans Home.   
 

2. City of Napa partners with the Napa Sanitation District to run a large 
recycling program for oils (Recycle More Program).  The two agencies also 
benefit from a joint water conservation program and collaboration on pipeline 
projects.  Also, NapaSan, the City of Napa, and Napa Recycling coordinate 
scheduled tours of the wastewater treatment plant, water treatment plant, and 
recycling facility for Napa area students.  
 

3. In conjunction with the cities of St. Helena and Calistoga, City of Napa is 
looking for grant funding to make improvements to the Dwyer booster pump 
station in order to ensure reliable and adequate pressure for fire protection 
purposes.  
 

4. In addition, the City is monitoring regulations currently under study to define 
requirements for direct potable reuse (DPR). The regulations are likely to be 
finalized within five to 10 years.  The proximity of NapaSan’s Soscol WRF 
to the Barwick Jamieson treatment plant shows great potential for DPR, 
subject to capital improvements including a pump station and added treatment 
trains. 
 

5. The City is open to further collaboration and resource sharing with regional 
municipal water purveyors as demonstrated by its participation in the Napa 
Valley Drought Contingency Plan. 

 
D. City of St. Helena 

 
1. St. Helena shares an interconnection with the City of Napa through which the 

City of St. Helena buys potable treated water from Napa on a regular basis 
and in case of emergencies.  
 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 25 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

2. In conjunction with the cities of Napa and Calistoga, St. Helena is looking for 
grant funding to make improvements to the Dwyer booster pump station in 
order to ensure reliable and adequate pressure for fire protection purposes.  
 

3. Given the separation of municipal systems, further opportunities for facility 
sharing are limited.  However, the City is open to collaboration and resource 
sharing with regional municipal water purveyors as demonstrated by its 
participation in the Napa Drought Contingency Plan. 

 
E. Town of Yountville 

 
1. Yountville shares two interconnections with the Veterans Home and two 

interconnections with the City of Napa.  Additionally, the Town makes use of 
and pays for a portion of operations at the CDVA-owned and operated Rector 
Reservoir and water treatment plant. 
 

2. Due to the distance of other water providers, there are limited options for 
further facility sharing.  However, the Town is open to collaboration and 
resource sharing with regional municipal water purveyors as demonstrated by 
its participation in the Napa Drought Contingency Plan. 

 
F. Circle Oaks County Water District 

 
1. COCWD practices resource sharing with other agencies by sharing a general 

manager and operator with Spanish Flat Water District.  
 

2. An opportunity for facility sharing may be contracting with another agency 
for a portion or all operations, such as the City of Napa or Napa Sanitation 
District.  

 
G. Congress Valley Water District 

CVWD relies upon shared facilities with the City of Napa for water conveyance 
to the District’s boundaries.  Additionally, the contract service structure allows for 
resource sharing as the City operates and maintains the Districts’ distribution 
system. 
 

H. Lake Berryessa Resort Improvement District 

LBRID is administered by County staff in concert with NBRID. The two County-
dependent resort improvement districts also share contract services by a single 
operator. 
 
 
 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 26 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

I. Los Carneros Water District 
 
1. Having no infrastructure or facilities of its own, LCWD relies upon shared 

facilities from NapaSan to provide reclaimed water to its customers. 
 

2. LCWD collaborates with NapaSan via its contract service arrangement.  The 
two agencies maintain a good working relationship with a regular reporting 
structure to ensure transparency. 

 
J. Napa Berryessa Resort Improvement District 

NBRID is administered by County staff in concert with LBRID. The two County-
dependent resort improvement districts also share contract services by a single 
operator. 
 

K. Napa County Flood Control and Water Conservation District 

The District collaborates with local agencies on projects, planning and technical 
efforts on shared and regional facilities. 
 

L. Napa River Reclamation District No. 2109 
 
1. NRRD collaborates with NCFCWCD on various reclamation-related 

activities, including shared funding of a study of reclamation needs. 
Governance structure options exist whereby this collaboration could be 
formalized and expanded, for example, if NRRD were to become a zone of 
NCFCWCD for reclamation purposes. 
 

2. As noted by prior MSRs and SOI reviews, NRRD and its residents should 
explore opportunities to work with the Napa County Resource Conservation 
District (NCRCD) to educate constituents with regard to activities to control 
settlement along their portion of the levee.   

 
M. Napa Sanitation District 

 
1. While the District does not practice facility sharing with regard to wastewater 

and recycled water infrastructure with other agencies, it collaborates with 
other agencies on joint projects and initiatives.   
 

2. NapaSan partners with the City of Napa to run a large recycling program for 
oils (Recycle More Program). The two agencies also benefit from a joint 
water conservation program and collaboration on pipeline projects. Also, 
NapaSan, the City of Napa, and Napa Recycling coordinate scheduled tours 
of the wastewater treatment plant, water treatment plant, and recycling facility 
for Napa area students.  

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 27 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

3. The recently completed Coombsville recycled water truck filling station in 
the MST area is a joint project with the County and funding coming from the 
MST CFD and the State. 
 

4. No further opportunities for facility sharing were identified. 
 

N. Spanish Flat Water District 
 
1. SFWD practices resource sharing with other agencies by sharing a general 

manager and operator with Circle Oaks County Water District.  
 

2. An opportunity for facility sharing may be contracting with another agency 
for a portion or all operations, such as the City of Napa or Napa Sanitation 
District.  
 

3. Transitioning to a CSA would allow for sharing of County staff resources. 
 

6. Accountability for Community Service Needs, Including Governmental Structure and 
Operational Efficiencies (Government Code 56430(a)(6)): 

 
A. City of American Canyon 

 
1. The City Council holds regular appropriately noticed meetings.  

 
2. American Canyon makes available most documents on its website, including 

minutes, agendas, and financial and planning reports. The website also 
provides a means to solicit comments and complaints from customers. The 
City is compliant with the agenda-posting requirements outlined in AB 2257. 

 
B. City of Calistoga  

 
1. The City Council holds regular appropriately noticed meetings.  

 
2. Calistoga makes available most documents on its website, including minutes, 

agendas, and financial and planning reports. The website also provides a 
means to solicit comments and complaints from customers. The City is 
compliant with the agenda-posting requirements outlined in AB 2257. 

 
C. City of Napa 

 
1. The City Council holds regular appropriately noticed meetings.  Meetings 

are also broadcast live on the City’s website. 
 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 28 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

2. The City makes available most documents on its website, including minutes, 
agendas, and financial and planning reports. The City is compliant with the 
agenda-posting requirements outlined in AB 2257. 

 
3. It is recommended that City of Napa, CVWD, and the County begin 

discussions regarding moving forward with dissolution of CVWD and 
extended services by the City of Napa. Discussion should focus on the manner 
of addressing the challenges to this reorganization option.   

 
4. Both the Cities of Napa and St. Helena provide water services to the 

Rutherford Road area, which is outside both cities.  It is recommended that 
the two cities, in coordination with the County as the land use authority in the 
area, create a communication structure to ensure that duplicative services do 
not occur elsewhere. 

 
5. All of the City’s outside service customers are prone to disenfranchisement 

without representation on the water service decision-making body (City 
Council).  It is recommended in order to address this issue, that the City form 
a Water Commission or Advisory Committee to provide input to the City 
Council, on which out of area customers may sit or for whom seats are 
reserved.   

 
D. City of St. Helena 

 
1. The City Council holds regular appropriately noticed meetings.  

  
2. St. Helena makes available most documents on its website, including minutes, 

agendas, and financial and planning reports.  The City is compliant with the 
agenda-posting requirements outlined in AB 2257. 

 
E. Town of Yountville 

 
1. The Town Council holds regular appropriately noticed meetings.   

 
2. Yountville makes available most documents on its website, including 

minutes, agendas, and financial and planning reports. The website also 
provides a means to solicit comments and complaints from customers. The 
Town is compliant with the agenda-posting requirements outlined in AB 
2257. 
 

3. Enhanced communication and collaboration between CDVA and the Town 
are essential to ensuring sustainable water supply. It is recommended that 
CDVA improve its process for dissemination of information to customers 
(including Yountville) to keep them informed about issues at the reservoir 
and treatment plant, the potential for water delivery impacts, and the manner 
in which the issues are being addressed. 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 29 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

F. Circle Oaks County Water District 
 

1. The District Board holds regular appropriately noticed meetings.   
 

2. COCWD primarily conducts outreach via its website, which makes available 
comprehensive information and documents to the public.  COCWD is fully 
compliant with the SB 929 and SB 2257 requirements.   
 

3. Governance structure alternatives include contracting with another agency for 
services or reorganization with a countywide county water district. 

 
G. Congress Valley Water District 

 
1. The District Board holds regular appropriately noticed meetings.   

 
2. The District has not developed a website to make information available to the 

public as recommended in the 2017 MSR.  It is recommended that the District 
ascertain the cost of creating and maintaining a website and reassess its 
finding of hardship in regard to compliance with SB 929. CVWD reports that 
it expects to have a website in place by “the fall of 2020.” 
 

3. CVWD and the City of Napa maintain a good working relationship; however, 
improvements could be made by initiating a regular reporting structure to 
keep the District informed. 
 

4. It is recommended that City of Napa, CVWD, and the County begin 
discussions regarding moving forward with dissolution of CVWD and 
extended services by the City of Napa.  Discussion should focus on the 
manner of addressing the challenges to this reorganization option.   

 
H. Lake Berryessa Resort Improvement District 

 
1. The County Board of Supervisors serves as directors of the District, and hold 

regular, noticed meetings. 
 

2. The District maintains a website; however, it contains minimal content 
beyond payment links and posted responses to questions from 2016. 
 

3. District staff inform residents through mailings and newsletters, posts on the 
NextDoor social media site, and in-person meetings as needed.   

 
I. Los Carneros Water District 

 
1. The District Board holds regular appropriately noticed meetings.   

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 30 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

2. The District primarily conducts outreach via its website, which makes 
available comprehensive information and documents to the public and solicits 
input from customers.  LCWD is fully compliant with the SB 929 
requirements.  It is recommended that LCWD review its website and ensure 
it complies with AB 2257. 
 

3. Given that NapaSan provides almost all services to the customers within 
LCWD’s boundaries, which in essence is a “functional consolidation,” there 
is potential to streamline the service structure by eliminating a level of 
administration through a “full consolidation” of the two agencies.  It is 
recommended that NapaSan and LCWD begin discussions regarding the 
possibility of moving forward with reorganization. 

 
J. Napa Berryessa Resort Improvement District 

 
1. The County Board of Supervisors serves as directors of the District, and hold 

regular, noticed meetings. 
 

2. The District maintains a website; however, it contains minimal content 
beyond payment links and posted responses to questions from 2016. 
 

3. District staff inform residents through mailings and newsletters, posts on the 
NextDoor social media site, and in-person meetings as needed.   

 
K. Napa County Flood Control and Water Conservation District 

 
1. The District’s board includes membership by all County supervisors, and 

representatives of all incorporated cities/town and a council member from the 
City of Napa. 
 

2. The District is empowered with the ability to create “zones of benefit” that 
could enable small communities to benefit from the staff expertise of a larger 
organization for reclamation purposes. 

 
L. Napa River Reclamation District No. 2109 

 
NRRD conducts regular public hearings in conformance with the Brown Act and 
maintains a website to provide information to its residents. 

 
M. Napa Sanitation District 

 
1. The District Board holds regular appropriately noticed meetings.   

 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 31 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

2. The District primarily conducts outreach via its website, which makes 
available comprehensive information and documents to the public and solicits 
input from customers. The website complies with SB 929 and AB 2257 
requirements. 
 

3. The District has made significant strides towards improving efficiency of its 
system and making use of alternative energy sources. In FY 17-18, the District 
was able to power the treatment facility with 53 percent of self-generated 
energy through efforts to reduce energy usage and increase energy production 
and storage. 

 
N. Spanish Flat Water District 

 
1. The District Board holds regular appropriately noticed meetings.   

 
2. The District struggled to respond to requests for information in a timely 

manner. 
 

3. SFWD recently developed a website to comply with SB 929. The District 
continues to organize and post documents and information to the website. 
While finalizing the site, SFWD should ensure that it is also meeting the 
agenda posting requirements in AB 2257. 
 

4. Governance structure alternatives include contracting with another agency for 
services, reorganization with a countywide county water district, and 
transitioning into a county service area. 

 
7. Relationship with Regional Growth Goals and Policies (Government Code 

56430(a)(7)): 
 

A. City of American Canyon 
 

1. The City of American Canyon has adopted an Urban Limit Line (ULL) to 
manage its growth. The ULL represents an agreement with Napa County and 
is consistent with the County’s General Plan and agricultural protection 
ordinances.  
 

2. The City of American Canyon and four other municipalities of Napa County 
participate in the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA), which 
functions as the region’s Congestion Management Agency and provides input 
to the Bay Area-wide Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s (MTC) 20-
year Regional Transportation Plan.  Plans applicable to American Canyon 
include Napa Countywide Pedestrian Plan, Vision 2040 Moving Napa 
Forward – A Countywide Transportation Plan, Countywide Bicycle Plan, SR 
29 Gateway Corridor Implementation Plan, and Plan Bay Area. 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 32 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

3. Napa LAFCO has adopted a resolution defining the City’s water and 
wastewater service areas. According to the resolution, the City may not 
provide new or extended water and sewer services within its adopted service 
areas without prior written LAFCO authorization, with the exception of the 
Airport Industrial Zone, which is outside of the City boundaries but is exempt 
from this requirement. This policy is consistent with the California Code 
§56133 on out-of-area services. 
  

4. The City’s boundaries include three non-contiguous parcels that are outside 
of its Sphere of Influence (SOI), which are owned by the City and used for 
municipal purposes. Typically, this would indicate LAFCO’s anticipation that 
these areas be detached from the City; however, it has been Napa LAFCO’s 
practice to not include city-owned property within a city’s SOI pursuant to 
Government Code §56742, which is specific to noncontiguous territories. 
LAFCO may wish to consider including the noncontiguous city-owned 
properties in the City of American Canyon’s SOI during its next update, or if 
LAFCO wishes to continue the practice of excluding these properties from 
the City’s SOI, then it may consider clarifying its intent in its policies.   
 

B. City of Calistoga  
 

1. Calistoga has adopted the Resource Management System and the Growth 
Management System to manage growth within the City and maintain its 
small-town character. This objective protects agriculture within and 
surrounding the municipality, which align with the County’s Agricultural 
Preserve policies.  
 

2. The City of Calistoga and four other municipalities of Napa County 
participate in the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA), which 
functions as the region’s Congestion Management Agency and provides input 
to the Bay Area-wide Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s (MTC) 20-
year Regional Transportation Plan.  Plans applicable to Calistoga include 
Napa Countywide Pedestrian Plan, Vision 2040 Moving Napa Forward – A 
Countywide Transportation Plan, Countywide Bicycle Plan, SR 29 Gateway 
Corridor Implementation Plan, and Plan Bay Area. 
 

3. The City participates in the Bay Area Integrated Regional Water Management 
Plan (IRWMP) that aims to coordinate and improve water supply reliability, 
protect water quality, manage flood protection, maintain public health 
standards, protect habitat and watershed resources, and enhance the overall 
health of the San Francisco Bay.  
 
 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 33 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

4. The City of Calistoga provides water services to 78 connections outside of its 
boundary area. Although the exact dates of connection are unknown, most 
likely water service to these unincorporated properties was established prior 
to G.C. §56133 and is specifically exempt given that the service was extended 
prior to January 1, 2001. New water connections to parcels outside the City’s 
jurisdictional boundary have been prohibited by the municipal code since 
2005, which aligns with State legislation and LAFCO policy.   
 

5. The City provides recycled water services to 15 customers.  Recycled water 
services are exempt from requiring LAFCO approval prior to extension of 
services beyond an agency’s boundaries under Government Code §56133. 
 

6. The City makes its recycled water available for trucking through a filling 
station at the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant. There is no limit as to the 
quantity of recycled water that can be trucked as long as the purchaser obtains 
a prior permit through the City’s WWTP. While the City indicated that the 
trucked water is inappropriate to support development due to its boron levels, 
in order to ensure that trucked water does not promote development and 
growth in unincorporated areas where water supply is not sustainable and 
which may adversely affect agricultural uses, it is recommended that 
approved uses for trucking of water be defined in the City’s municipal code.  
The intent of this code is to supplement the equivalent recommended County 
code as the land use authority in unincorporated areas. 

 
C. City of Napa 
 

1. The City’s growth area is limited by the voter-approved Rural Urban Limit 
(RUL). This constraint on growth aligns with the County’s Agricultural 
Preserve policy. 
 

2. The City of Napa and four other municipalities of Napa County participate in 
the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA), which functions as the 
region’s Congestion Management Agency and provides input to the Bay 
Area-wide Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s (MTC) 20-year 
Regional Transportation Plan.  Plans applicable to City of Napa include Napa 
Countywide Pedestrian Plan, Vision 2040 Moving Napa Forward – A 
Countywide Transportation Plan, Countywide Bicycle Plan, SR 29 Gateway 
Corridor Implementation Plan, and Plan Bay Area. 
 

3. The City of Napa provides outside water services to 2,213 connections. A 
majority of these connections were established prior to G.C. §56133 and are 
specifically exempt. The City has adopted policy limiting extension of 
services outside of the RUL in its Charter Section 180. There are no similar 
policies regarding extension of services outside the city limits but inside the 
RUL. 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 34 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

4. The City makes its potable water available for trucking through a filling 
station. There are no limitations on who may make use of the water for 
trucking.  In order to ensure that trucked water does not promote development 
and growth in unincorporated areas where water supply is not sustainable and 
which may adversely affect agricultural uses, it is recommended that 
approved uses and locations for trucking of water be defined in the City’s 
municipal code to supplement the recommended County policy on approved 
uses and locations of transported water as the land use authority. 

 
D. City of St. Helena 
 

1. St. Helena aims to control and limit development in order to contain 
development and preserve open space and agricultural lands in and adjacent 
to the City. To accomplish this goal, the City has adopted an Urban Limit 
Line, designated Urban Reserve Areas, and developed the Residential Growth 
Management System. These growth-limiting practices align with the 
County’s Agricultural Preserve policy. 
 

2. The City of St. Helena and four other municipalities of Napa County 
participate in the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA), which 
functions as the region’s Congestion Management Agency and provides input 
to the Bay Area-wide Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s (MTC) 20-
year Regional Transportation Plan.  Plans applicable to Yountville include 
Napa Countywide Pedestrian Plan, Vision 2040 Moving Napa Forward – A 
Countywide Transportation Plan, Countywide Bicycle Plan, SR 29 Gateway 
Corridor Implementation Plan, and Plan Bay Area. 
 

3. The City of St. Helena provides outside water services to 361 residential, 
commercial and industrial connections. Water service to these unincorporated 
properties was established prior to G.C. §56133 and is specifically exempt 
given that the service was extended prior to January 1, 2001. New water 
connections to parcels located outside the City’s jurisdictional boundary are 
not prohibited by municipal code, which aligns with State legislation and 
LAFCO policy. 

 
E. Town of Yountville 
 

1. The Town has maintained a conservative SOI in the interest of “seeking to 
protect its small-town character through land use planning.”  This objective 
protects agriculture within and surrounding the municipality, which aligns 
with the County’s Agricultural Preserve policy.   
 
 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 35 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

2. The Town of Yountville and four other municipalities of Napa County 
participate in the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA), which 
functions as the region’s Congestion Management Agency and provides input 
to the Bay Area-wide Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s (MTC) 20-
year Regional Transportation Plan.  Plans applicable to Yountville include 
Napa Countywide Pedestrian Plan, Vision 2040 Moving Napa Forward – A 
Countywide Transportation Plan, Countywide Bicycle Plan, SR 29 Gateway 
Corridor Implementation Plan, and Plan Bay Area. 
 

3. The Town of Yountville provides outside water services to 36 rural 
residences.  Water  service to these unincorporated properties was established 
in the 1950s, prior to G.C. §56133 and is specifically exempt given that the 
service was extended prior to January 1, 2001.  New water connections to 
parcels located outside the Town’s jurisdictional boundary have been 
prohibited by municipal code since 1977, which aligns with State legislation 
and LAFCO policy. 
 

4. The Town of Yountville provides outside wastewater services to the Domaine 
Chandon property.  Wastewater service to the unincorporated property was 
established prior to G.C. §56133 and is specifically exempt given that the 
service was extended prior to January 1, 2001.  The Town extended services 
to the property with the understanding that the property would be annexed.  
The territory has been added to the Town’s SOI in anticipation of annexation, 
which is in alignment with regional planning objectives and LAFCO’s 
policies and mandate.  It is recommended that the Town and County continue 
conversations regarding the potential annexation of the property and the 
related necessary tax sharing agreement in the interest of finalizing the 
agreement conditions and promoting logical boundaries. 
 

5. The recycled water service area encompasses the Town’s municipal 
boundaries, and approximately 4,000 acres of vineyards in unincorporated 
Napa County.  Recycled water services are exempt from requiring LAFCO 
approval prior to extension of services beyond an agency’s boundaries under 
Government Code §56133. 
 

6. The Town makes its recycled water available for trucking through a filling 
station at the reclamation facility.  There are no limitations on who may make 
use of the recycled water for trucking.  In order to ensure that trucked water 
does not promote development and growth in unincorporated areas where 
water supply is not sustainable and which may adversely affect agricultural 
uses, it is recommended that approved uses for trucking of water be defined 
in the Town’s municipal code. The intent of this code is to supplement the 
equivalent recommended County code as the land use authority in 
unincorporated areas. 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 36 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

F. Circle Oaks County Water District 
 

1. COCWD is not a land use authority that takes part in regional planning efforts 
and therefore does not impact growth policy. 
 

2. LAFCO’s adopted policies relating to special district spheres discourage any 
expansions of COCWD’s existing sphere to promote urban development 
based on current land use designations of lands located within close proximity 
to the District. 

 
G. Congress Valley Water District 
 

1. CVWD is not a land use authority that takes part in regional planning efforts 
and therefore does not impact growth policy. 
 

2. LAFCO’s adopted policies relating to special district spheres discourage any 
expansions of CVWD’s existing sphere to promote urban development based 
on current land use designations of lands located within close proximity to 
the District. 

 
H. Lake Berryessa Resort Improvement District 
 

1. LBRID is not a land use authority that takes part in regional planning efforts 
and therefore does not impact growth policy. 
 

2. LBRID’s SOI excludes substantial areas within its boundaries which are 
designated for single-family development, however, those areas currently are 
not served by the District and there are minimal prospects of those lands 
developing and requiring services within a ten-year time horizon. 

 
I. Los Carneros Water District 
 

1. LCWD is not a land use authority that takes part in regional planning efforts 
and therefore does not impact growth policy. 

 
2. LAFCO’s adopted policies relating to special district spheres discourage any 

expansions of LCWD’s existing sphere to promote urban development based 
on current land use designations of lands located within close proximity to 
the District. 

 
J. Napa Berryessa Resort Improvement District 
 

1. NBRID is not a land use authority that takes part in regional planning efforts 
and therefore does not impact growth policy. 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 37 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

2. NBRID’s SOI excludes substantial areas within its boundaries which are 
designated for single-family development, however, those areas currently are 
not served by the District and there are minimal prospects of those lands 
developing and requiring services within a ten-year time horizon. 

 
K. Napa County Flood Control and Water Conservation District 

 
County departments staff the District and provide for close coordination with 
regional growth goals and policies. 

 
L. Napa River Reclamation District No. 2109 
 

1. NRRD’s SOI excludes substantial areas within its boundaries which are 
owned and utilized by NRRD for its wastewater plant, and which are 
designated by the County as “Agriculture, Watershed, and Open Space” 
similar to adjacent lands outside the District.  
 

2. Excluding approximately 20 acres consisting of NRRD’s wastewater plant 
from NRRD’s SOI is consistent with LAFCO’s policy to not promote “urban 
development within land designated as agriculture or open-space under the 
County General Plan.”   

 
M. Napa Sanitation District 
 

1. NapaSan is not a land use authority that takes part in regional planning efforts 
and therefore does not impact growth policy. 
 

2. NapaSan provides outside wastewater services to four connections outside of 
its boundaries—four residences (two served by one connection) and the Napa 
State Hospital.  Two connections were established prior to G.C. §56133 and 
are specifically exempt given that the service was extended prior to January 
1, 2001.  For the other two connections, LAFCO approval was appropriately 
sought.  NapaSan does not have policies specific to the extension of services 
outside of its boundaries or sphere of influence. It is recommended that 
NapaSan consider defining where outside services will be considered. 
 

3. A majority of the NapaSan’s recycled water service area lies outside of its 
boundaries to the northeast, southeast, and west.  Recycled water services are 
exempt from requiring LAFCO approval prior to extension of services 
beyond an agency’s boundaries under Government Code §56133. 
 

4. NapaSan makes its recycled water available for trucking through two filling 
stations. The District has appropriately adopted limitations on the location and 
type of uses for trucked water, to which users are required to sign agreement.   

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 38 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



 

 

5. The Monticello Park community is experiencing failing septic systems, and 
replacement is cost prohibitive.  There is a need for wastewater services in the 
area that could be provided by NapaSan.  Extension of needed services to the 
already developed area through provisions in Government Code §56133.5 is 
an option that would allow for needed services to the defined developed area.   

 
N. Spanish Flat Water District 
 

1. SFWD is not a land use authority that takes part in regional planning efforts 
and therefore does not impact growth policy. 
 

2. LAFCO’s adopted policies relating to special district spheres discourage any 
expansions of SFWD’s existing sphere to promote urban development based 
on current land use designations of lands located within close proximity to 
the District. 

Resolution for Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review Page 39 of 39

Attachment One

DRAFT



From: Phil Brun
To: Jennifer Stephenson; Freeman, Brendon
Cc: Joy Eldredge; Patrick Costello; Michael Barrett
Subject: Revised Draft Water/Wastewater MSR
Date: Tuesday, September 15, 2020 8:50:01 AM
Attachments: C2019 323 Carneros Mutual Water Compandy.pdf

[External Email - Use Caution]

Jennifer and Brendon,

I have briefly looked through the redline draft of the LAFCO Water/Wastewater
MSR and don’t have any significant concerns with revisions, however I wanted
to advise you that Carneros Mutual Water Company (referred to as Carneros
Inn in the report) has activated their service from the City of Napa pursuant to
the attached agreement.  I understand that the County has placed conditions
on Carneros Inn related to groundwater use once the connection to the City
has been made.  These details seem appropriate for the new section on private
water companies that has been added to the report.

PHIL

Phil Brun Jr., PE
Utilities Director, Utilities Department
City of Napa | P.O. Box 660 | Napa, CA  94559-0660
( 707.257.9316 | 707.246-2824 (cell) | * pbrun@cityofnapa.org
Water • Solid Waste • Recycling

Comments on Redline MSR - City of Napa 
Page 1 of 21 Attachment Two

mailto:pbrun@cityofnapa.org
mailto:jennifer@pcateam.com
mailto:bfreeman@napa.lafco.ca.gov
mailto:jeldredge@cityofnapa.org
mailto:PCostello@cityofnapa.org
mailto:mbarrett@cityofnapa.org
mailto:pbrun@cityofnapa.org























































































Comments on Redline MSR - City of Napa 
Page 2 of 21 Attachment Two



Comments on Redline MSR - City of Napa 
Page 3 of 21 Attachment Two



Comments on Redline MSR - City of Napa 
Page 4 of 21 Attachment Two



Comments on Redline MSR - City of Napa 
Page 5 of 21 Attachment Two



Comments on Redline MSR - City of Napa 
Page 6 of 21 Attachment Two



Comments on Redline MSR - City of Napa 
Page 7 of 21 Attachment Two



Comments on Redline MSR - City of Napa 
Page 8 of 21 Attachment Two



Comments on Redline MSR - City of Napa 
Page 9 of 21 Attachment Two



Comments on Redline MSR - City of Napa 
Page 10 of 21 Attachment Two



Comments on Redline MSR - City of Napa 
Page 11 of 21 Attachment Two



Comments on Redline MSR - City of Napa 
Page 12 of 21 Attachment Two



Comments on Redline MSR - City of Napa 
Page 13 of 21 Attachment Two



Comments on Redline MSR - City of Napa 
Page 14 of 21 Attachment Two



Comments on Redline MSR - City of Napa 
Page 15 of 21 Attachment Two



Comments on Redline MSR - City of Napa 
Page 16 of 21 Attachment Two



Comments on Redline MSR - City of Napa 
Page 17 of 21 Attachment Two



Comments on Redline MSR - City of Napa 
Page 18 of 21 Attachment Two



Comments on Redline MSR - City of Napa 
Page 19 of 21 Attachment Two



Comments on Redline MSR - City of Napa 
Page 20 of 21 Attachment Two



Comments on Redline MSR - City of Napa 
Page 21 of 21 Attachment Two



Comments on Redline MSR - Napa County 
Page 1 of 2 Attachment Three



Comments on Redline MSR - Napa County 
Page 2 of 2 Attachment Three



G:Hon.Leary (Regular Meeting Agenda No. 7.c) 9.21.20 

William D. Ross 
David Schwarz 
Kypros G. Hostetter 

Law Offices of 

William D. Ross 
400 Lambert Avenue 

Palo Alto, California 94306 
Telephone:  (650) 843-8080 
Facsimile:  (650) 843-8093 

Los Angeles Office: 

P.O. Box 25532 
Los Angeles, CA 90025 

File No: 199/6.20

September 22, 2020 

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 

The Honorable Kenneth Leary, Chairperson 
  and Members of the Local Agency Formation Commission 
of Napa County 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 
Napa, CA  94559 

Re: Revised; October 5, 2020 Regular Meeting; Consideration and Approval 
of Water and Wastewater Municipal Service Review  

Dear Chair Leary and Commission Members, 

This office serves as the City Attorney for the City of American Canyon (“City”), 
which at a properly noticed Closed Session of its City Council on September 15, 2020, 
authorized this office and the City Manager, Jason B. Holley, to take all actions necessary 
before the Commission at the October 5, 2020 meeting, to oppose the consideration and 
possible adoption of the draft Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal Service 
Review (the “MSR”). 

The Local Agency Formation Commission (“LAFCO”) Executive Officer, Staff and 
Consultants maintain that the Water Service Area (“WSA”) of the City, is the City’s current 
boundaries rather than that established at the City’s incorporation in 1992. 

Discussions on this issue have been ongoing between this Office, the City Manager 
and LAFCO representatives since February 8, 2019.  At that time, the City was contacted 
by LAFCO Staff to obtain the incorporation documents for the City from 1992 for use by 
the MSR Consultants.  No explanation was offered as to why the City incorporation 
documents were not present in LAFCO records.  LAFCO Staff was supplied with not only 
the incorporation documents, but those documents associated with their environmental 
review under the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 
21000 et seq., (“CEQA”)). 

Comments on Redline MSR - City of American Canyon 
Page 1 of 92 Attachment Four



The Honorable Kenneth Leary, Chairperson  
  and Members of the Local Agency Formation Commission 
September 22, 2020 
Page 2 
 
 

 

Notwithstanding the meetings between City Staff, LAFCO Staff and Consultants, 
there remain several unresolved factual and legal issues concerning the LAFCO Executive 
Officer’s claim that the City WSA at the time of incorporation is not the City WSA, but 
rather is the existing City limits. 

The City disagrees with the LAFCO Executive Officer’s conclusion and the 
proposal to move forward despite these unresolved issues by a simple statement, that the 
issue remains unresolved.  See, LAFCO Comment Log (attached as Exhibit “A”), page 1, 
line 5. 

In the Commission’s Workshop on July 13, 2020, it was precisely stated that the 
matter is a “detailed and complex problem” to be resolved with the LAFCO Executive 
Officer, Staff and Project Consultants. 

Given the significant impacts of the possible adoption of this MSR by the 
Commission without City WSA resolution, the City demands that the matter be continued 
until the issues are fully resolved with the LAFCO Executive Officer, Legal Counsel and 
Consultants.  Both the undersigned and Mr. Holley will be available for questions on 
October 5, 20201 before the Commission. 

At the August 3, 2020 Commission meeting, the matter was considered under 
Agenda Item No. 7.c., where the Staff Report incorporated a reference to “MSR figure 
3-14; Governance Structure Options,” a copy of which is attached as Exhibit “B.”  Under 
the heading “Governance Structure Options,” the following is set forth with respect to the 
City of American Canyon Governance Options: 

• Clarification of LAFCO - approved service area; 
• Inclusion of non-contiguous city-owned property in SOI or clarification of 

LAFCO policy; and, 
• Participation in a county water agency. 

Stated differently, how can LAFCO proceed to consider and adopt any of the draft 
MSR “Governance Options” until it is known what the baseline footprint is with respect to 
the City WSA? 

The City fails to see how there is evidence, or an analysis, by the Executive Officer, 
LAFCO Staff, Legal Counsel or Consultants that establishes a Governance baseline so that 

 
1 The City representatives at the Commission July 13, 2020 Workshop are also referenced in Exhibit “B.”  See, the 
next to last page. 

Comments on Redline MSR - City of American Canyon 
Page 2 of 92 Attachment Four



The Honorable Kenneth Leary, Chairperson 
  and Members of the Local Agency Formation Commission 
September 22, 2020 
Page 3 

the critical issues associated with the City WSA, can serve as a basis for further 
recommendations to the Commission. 

The City also maintains that the lack of any substantive analysis of the MSR under 
the CEQA, provides a second reason why the proposed action should be continued. 

Very truly yours, 

William D. Ross 
City Attorney 

WDR:as 

cc: Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer 
Local Agency Formation Commission 

The Honorable Leon Garcia and Members of the City Council 
Jason B. Holley, City Manager 
City of American Canyon 

Enclosures: Exhibit “A” (Comment Log) 
Exhibit “B” (Staff Report) 

Comments on Redline MSR - City of American Canyon 
Page 3 of 92 Attachment Four

Exhibit "B" available online at: 
https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/documents/8-3-20_7c_CommentsDraftWaterWastewaterMSR.pdf



Comments on Redline MSR - City of American Canyon 
Page 4 of 92 Attachment Four



Comments on Redline MSR - City of American Canyon 
Page 5 of 92 Attachment Four



Comments on Redline MSR - City of American Canyon 
Page 6 of 92 Attachment Four



Comments on Redline MSR - City of American Canyon 
Page 7 of 92 Attachment Four



Comments on Redline MSR - City of American Canyon 
Page 8 of 92 Attachment Four



Comments on Redline MSR - City of American Canyon 
Page 9 of 92 Attachment Four



Comments on Redline MSR - City of American Canyon 
Page 10 of 92 Attachment Four



Comments on Redline MSR - City of American Canyon 
Page 11 of 92 Attachment Four



Comments on Redline MSR - City of American Canyon 
Page 12 of 92 Attachment Four



Comments on Redline MSR - City of American Canyon 
Page 13 of 92 Attachment Four



Comments on Redline MSR - City of American Canyon 
Page 14 of 92 Attachment Four



Comments on Redline MSR - City of American Canyon 
Page 15 of 92 Attachment Four



Comments on Redline MSR - City of American Canyon 
Page 16 of 92 Attachment Four



Comments on Redline MSR - City of American Canyon 
Page 17 of 92 Attachment Four



Comments on Redline MSR - City of American Canyon 
Page 18 of 92 Attachment Four



EXHIBIT ''B'' 

Comments on Redline MSR - City of American Canyon 
Page 19 of 92 Attachment Four

Exhibit "B" not included due to file size. Exhibit "B" is the LAFCO 
staff report from August 3, 2020 and is available online at:

https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/uploads/
documents/8-3-20_7c_CommentsDraftWaterWastewaterMSR.pdf



1 

September 23, 2020 

Comments on Chapter 7 (City of St. Helena) in  
Napa County Water & Wastewater MSR Redlined Draft Final 

1. Page 195: second paragraph under Sphere of Influence.  The two non-
contiguous parcels owned by the City near Bell Canyon are not within the City’s
boundaries.  They are in the County.

2. Page 197: first paragraph under Accountability and Governance.  The mayor
is elected to a two-year term, not a four-year term, as correctly stated in the City of
St. Helena Profile on page 194.

3. Page 200: Figure 7.3, ninth line: change “wastewater” to “water” so that the
line reads: “Monthly Water Rates as a % of Household Income.”

4. Page 201: Figure 7.3, ninth line: change “water” to “wastewater” so that the
line reads:  “Monthly Wastewater Rates as a % of Household Income.”

5. Pages 212-13:  In settlement of a lawsuit brought in 2016 by Water Audit
California, the City did not agree to divert more water from Bell Canyon reservoir to
the creek.   (Note: the City’s bypass obligation is specified in DWR Permit 9157
(1953) as amended in 1989.)  The City did agree to a further study to ensure that it
was properly meeting its State by-pass requirement.  Open channel flow
measurement can present complexities, especially at Bell Canyon in measuring
inflows into the reservoir.

6. Page 213: third and fourth paragraphs are inconsistent.  The third paragraph
states the “City routinely monitors the elevation of the aquifer in the area of the city
wells.”  The fourth paragraph begins: “The City has not tracked groundwater levels
in recent years.”  Regrettably, this appears to be the case.  The first sentence in the
third paragraph should be deleted.

7. Page 214: First paragraph under Emergency Preparedness, last sentence.
The City tested the capped well on the City-owned Adams Street property for flow in
about 2011.  Hence, the City should know the volume of water that might be
expected.

8. Page 216: second paragraph under Demand/Supply Analysis.  The statement
that “experience has shown that the City has inadequate water to supply customer
demand with imposition of water emergency restrictions in recent years” is not
correct.  In “recent years” (since 2014) prior to the current water year the City in
fact supplied water without the imposition of water emergency restrictions.

Comments on Redline MSR - Alan Galbraith 
Page 1 of 2 Attachment Five



 2 

9. Page 217: last paragraph before Water Infrastructure and Facilities heading.  
The first sentence correctly states: “The City plans to assess the feasibility of 
production of reclaimed water as a potential water source.”  The statement found in 
note one on page 1 does not fit this description.   Note one reads: “The City of St. 
Helena reclaims water for use on city-owned irrigation fields, which does not 
replace the use of potable water.”  The only City-owned field that receives treated 
water is the spray field in the County just south of the City’s Water Treatment Plant. 
This is strictly an adjunct of the City’s wastewater treatment operation.  I don’t think 
this is worth a mention; the only goal of the spray field is to get rid of the water.  
This is not a meaningful reclamation use (no irrigated crops are grown).   The 
footnote is further confusing by its statement that potable water is not replaced.  
Potable water is not sprayed onto the spray field in the first place.  That would be a 
waste.  My suggestion is that note one on page one be removed. 
 
10. Page 217: Bell Canyon under Water Infrastructure and Facilities.  The storage 
capacity of Bell Canyon is about 2350AF.  The 1800 AF referenced on page 217 is the 
City’s storage right under DWR Permit 9157 (1953). 
 
11. Page 219: first sentence under Lower Reservoir.  The statement that water is 
“currently” diverted from York Creek and stored in Lower Reservoir is not correct.  
The City completed removal of the diversion dam on York Creek in 2008, which 
eliminated the diversion of Creek water into Lower Reservoir.  This is documented 
in City of St. Helena, Upper York Creek Dam & Ecosystem Restoration (undated 
pamphlet (prepared in 2015 or 2016 and accessible under its title through a Google 
search). 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Alan Galbraith 
Mayor, City of St. Helena (2014-18) 
agalbraith94574@gmail.com 
 
 

Comments on Redline MSR - Alan Galbraith 
Page 2 of 2 Attachment Five



SLOAN SAKAI YEUNG & WONG LLP BERKELEY | SACRAMENTO 

555 Capitol Mall, Suite 600     Sacramento, CA 95814     O: 916.258.8800     F: 916.258.8801     www.sloansakai.com 

DEEANNE GILLICK.  
TELEPHONE: (916) 258-8811 

dgillick@sloansakai.com 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer  
Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County 

From:     DeeAnne Gillick 
General Counsel 

Date: September 30, 2020 

Re: City of American Canyon “Water Service Area” 

________________________________________________________________________ 

PURPOSE OF MEMORANDUM 

The Commission is considering the Napa Countywide Water and Wastewater Municipal 
Services Review (MSR) at its October 5, 2020 Commission meeting.  The City of American 
Canyon (City) has continuously asserted that the MSR does not accurately reflect or describe the 
area which is the City’s “water service area.”  It is my opinion that the MSR correctly sets forth 
the current LAFCO approved areas in which the City may provide water and wastewater service 
outside its city limits consistent with the requirements of Cortese Knox Hertzberg and prior actions 
of the Commission.   

The purpose of this Memorandum is to set forth the requirements of Cortese Knox 
Hertzberg Act (CKH) and the past actions of the Commission which support the representations 
within the MSR related to the City of American Canyon’s water service.  This Memorandum 
addresses the potential confusion related to the historical and current reference to the City’s “water 
service area.”   

MSR STATEMENTS 

First, I will set forth the statements within the Redlined Draft Final MSR dated September 
14, 2020, which describe and depict the City’s service area, particularly outside its city boundaries.  
The water services discussion begins on page 73 and states on page 74 as follows:    

Service Area 

The City’s water service area is approximately 30 square miles, as shown in 
Figure 4-5.  It includes three distinct areas:96 

Attachment Six



 

September 30, 2020 
Page 2 
 

 American Canyon city limits that consists of six square miles and includes 
residential, commercial, industrial, and agricultural users; 
 

 The unincorporated commercial and industrial areas in and around the Napa 
County Airport located north of the City that cover about five square miles; and 
 

 The unincorporated largely open space and agricultural areas to the west, east 
and north of the City boundaries, which include agricultural users and a small 
number (28 accounts or estimated 70 people in 2015)97 of single-family 
residential customers who represent “legacy” accounts that were originally 
connected and served by the American Canyon County Water District, a 
predecessor to the City.  These accounts represent about one percent of the 
City’s total single-family residential accounts. 

 
A vast majority of the single-family water customers and all multi-family 
residential customers are located within the city limits.  Most of the out-of-city 
accounts are commercial and industrial users in and around Napa County Airport.98  
The City serves an estimated 70 additional residents outside of its boundaries in its 
water service area.99  The City’s water service area has been defined by LAFCO in 
a formal resolution whereby the City’s existing out-of-area services were approved 
and extension of services in the area defined as the Airport Industrial Area is 
permitted.  Any extension of services outside of the Airport Industrial Area, but 
within the established water service area requires prior written authorization by 
LAFCO.100 

 
After the pages with the maps, the report goes on to state at page 76 as follows: 

 
While the outside services are primarily a remnant of the former American Canyon 
County Water District, it is important to note that the LAFCO approved 
extraterritorial area approved in Resolution No. 07-27 is the only defined water 
service area for the City. As of the merger of the American Canyon County Water 
District with the City of American Canyon, the water district’s former boundaries 
are no longer relevant in reference to the City as its “service area,” meaning the 
City must seek LAFCO approval by application to serve areas outside of the city 
limits and the previously mentioned Airport Industrial Area per Government Code 
§56133. The City and LAFCO staff continue to engage in ongoing discussions with 
the intent to solidify consensus regarding the City’s defined service area boundaries 
and how it relates to potential future services outside the city limits. 

Then on page 94 the discussion on the wastewater service states:  

Service Area 

 The City’s wastewater service area extends northwards outside of its 
boundaries and was inherited by the City from the previous service provider—the 
American Canyon County Water District (ACCWD)—upon incorporation in 1992 

Attachment Six



 

September 30, 2020 
Page 3 
 

and merger with the water district. The JPA dissolution agreement from 1994 
between Napa Sanitation District (NapaSan) and the City of American Canyon 
identifies the centerline of Fagan Creek as a general dividing line between NapaSan 
and the City’s respective sewer service areas.  According to the agreement, Napa 
County Airport and Chardonnay Golf Course are to be served by NapaSan. 
Additionally, on October 15, 2007, Napa LAFCO adopted a resolution 07-27 where 
it described the City’s extra-territorial water and sewer service areas. On the map 
included in the resolution, Chardonnay Golf Course and Napa County Airport are 
erroneously shown in the City’s service area. To correct this error, LAFCO met 
with the City and NapaSan to garner agreement regarding an accurate map for the 
adopted resolution and a new map was created by Napa LAFCO in 2019, which is 
included in this MSR as Figure 6-20. The map shows the correct adopted service 
areas for both NapaSan and the City of American Canyon with Napa County 
Airport and Chardonnay Golf Course included in the NapaSan service area. 

According to Napa LAFCO Resolution 07-27, the City may not provide 
new or extended water and sewer services within its adopted service areas without 
LAFCO authorization. The Airport Industrial Zone, however, is exempt from this 
requirement. Similar to the City’s water service area, the wastewater outside 
services are primarily a remnant of the former American Canyon County Water 
District; however, it is important to note that the LAFCO-approved outside service 
area is the only defined wastewater service area for the City. As of the merger of 
the American Canyon County Water District with the City, the District’s former 
boundaries are no longer relevant in reference to the City as its approved service 
area, meaning the City must apply and gain approval from LAFCO in order to 
extend services outside of its city limits and the Airport Industrial Zone per 
Government Code § 56133. The City and LAFCO staff continue to engage in 
ongoing discussions with the intent to solidify consensus regarding the City’s 
defined service area boundaries and how it relates to potential future services 
outside the city limits. 

CKH AND PAST DECISIONS OF THE COMMISSION SUPPORT MSR  

It is my understanding that the City’s concern is the City’s ability to provide water and 
wastewater service outside the City limits to areas that were within the American Canyon County 
Water District (Water District) prior to incorporation of the City.  The Commission addressed this 
issue in 2007 and adopted LAFCO Resolution No. 07-27 (Attached as Exhibit A) which provides 
the current area in which the City may provide water and wastewater service consistent with CKH.  
The Commission deliberated on this issue substantially in 2007 and received several staff reports 
and legal opinion letters from interested parties.  The Commission deliberations resulted in 
LAFCO Resolution No. 07-27.  

Thereafter, LAFCO  staff  responded to an inquiry in 2014 in which the City inquired about 
the boundaries of the former American Canyon County Water District and what, if any, water 

Attachment Six



 

September 30, 2020 
Page 4 
 

connections outside of the City Limits require LAFCO authorization under CKH.  Attached as 
Exhibit B is the August 2014 Memorandum by LAFCO Executive Officer Laura Snideman 
(August 2014 Memorandum). The August 2014 Memorandum by LAFCO staff to City staff 
responds to that issue and the MSR is consistent with this August 2014 Memorandum.  

The August 2014 Memorandum states in its Summary Response as follows:   

Summary Response 
 
The District boundaries were reduced to coincide with the newly incorporated City 
and through the merger of the District with the City no longer exist. Subsequent 
LAFCO actions have acknowledged “grandfathering” of service delivery outside 
of the City’s boundaries and within a specific geographic area referred to as the 
Airport Industrial Area as mapped and memorialized by the Commission in October 
2007. All other new or extended water connections provided after January 1, 2001, 
outside of the City and outside of this area must be authorized by LAFCO in 
accordance with the provisions of 56133 and as re-confirmed by the Commission 
in October 2007.   

 

The August 2014 Memorandum acknowledges that this has been an area of confusion and 
states as follows:   

As to why these questions keep surfacing, I believe there may be confusion about 
past references to the District’s former “service area” versus actual boundaries, and 
that the actual boundaries were far smaller than many perceived them to be. While 
various relatively recent documents contain written references to a very large 
service area, no formal LAFCO maps or documents could be found documenting 
this. In addition, and perhaps more to the point, the concept of a service area is not 
a legal concept under LAFCO law and what matters is that the District, whose 
jurisdictional boundaries at the time were relatively modest and made smaller in 
conjunction with the City’s incorporation as described above, has officially ceased 
to exist. 

 
The confusion referenced in the August 2014 Memorandum appears to have resurfaced in 

the MSR comments and discussions.  In order to address the continued confusion, I set forth the 
documents and past LAFCO actions that support the facts and legal conclusions set forth in the 
August 2014 Memorandum and which are consistent with the MSR statements. 

 
 Prior to incorporation of the City of American Canyon water and wastewater 

was provided to the area by the former American Canyon County Water 
District. The boundaries of the former Water District were larger than the 
boundaries of the City of American Canyon as approved by LAFCO on May 
15, 1991, pursuant to Resolution No. 91-18 related to the incorporation of the 
City of American Canyon.  Attached as Exhibit C is LAFCO Resolution No. 
91-18.    
 

Attachment Six



 

September 30, 2020 
Page 5 
 

 The May 15, 1991 LAFCO minutes related to the American Canyon 
Incorporation reflect that LAFCO approved a detachment from the Water 
District of a portion of the area that was within the former Water District 
boundaries.  Upon city incorporation the Water District detachment reduced the 
then existing boundaries of the American Canyon County Water District.  See 
May 15, 1991 LAFCO Minutes attached as Exhibit D which states: “THE 
TERRITORY DESCRIBED IN ATTACHMENT #1 SHALL BE DETACHED 
FROM THE AMERICAN CANYON COUNTY WATER DISTRICT ON THE 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE AMERICAN CANYON INCORPORATION, 
JANUARY 1, 1992.”   
 

 LAFCO Resolution No. 91-18 conditions the incorporation of the City of 
American Canyon on the “merger of the American Canyon County Water 
District.”  (See Section 7 of Resolution No. 91-18 attached as Exhibit C.)  The 
minutes reflect that a portion of the former American Canyon County Water 
District was detached from the former District, which reduced the Water 
District boundaries to be conterminous with the newly incorporated city 
boundaries, and Resolution No. 91-18 reflects that upon incorporation of the 
City the Water District was merged with the newly formed City.   
 

 In 2007 the Commission received several reports and considered at multiple 
meetings the City’s then existing water and wastewater service.  On October 
15, 2007, the Commission approved Resolution No. 07-27 (Exhibit A), which 
addressed Government Code section 56133 and LAFCO’s role in approving 
new or extended services outside the City’s jurisdictional boundary.   
 

 Attached as Exhibit E is the Commission’s staff report memorandum dated 
February 27, 2007, related to its March 5, 2007 Agenda Item No. 8a, which 
provides a comprehensive review of Government Code section 56133 and water 
and wastewater service by the City of American Canyon outside its city limits.  
Government Code section 56133, which was effective on January 1, 1994, 
added a requirement for cities and special districts to receive written approval 
from LAFCO’s to provide new or extended services outside their jurisdictional 
boundaries.  The application of 56133 to the City’s service area was discussed 
in detail in this staff report memorandum.   
 

 Attached as Exhibit F is the Commission’s staff report memorandum dated 
September 19, 2007, related to its October 1, 2007 Agenda Item No. 7a, which 
further discusses the City’s water service area and the application of 56133.   
 

 Attached as Exhibit G is the Commission’s staff report memorandum dated 
October 10, 2007, related to its October 15, 2007 Agenda Item No. 4a, which 
resulted in the approval of Resolution No. 07-27 related to LAFCO’s approval 
of American Canyon water and wastewater outside the American Canyon city 
limits.     

 

Attachment Six



 

September 30, 2020 
Page 6 
 

CONCLUSION 
 
It is my understanding that there is no dispute that the City has the right and obligation to 

provide water and wastewater service to the “accounts that were originally connected and served 
by the American Canyon County Water District.”  This includes customers which are outside the 
existing City limits.  (See MSR at page 74 related to water service and page 94 related to 
wastewater service.)  This area may be characterized as within the City’s “water service area” as 
the customers within this area currently receive and may continue to receive service from the City.   
The current misunderstanding may be related to the City’s ability to provide “new or extended 
services” to future customers within the area the City refers to as the “water service area.”  The 
historical documents set forth in this Memorandum reflect and support the MSR’s characterization 
of the City’s ability to provide service to future customers within the “water service area.”   
Consistent with the original City incorporation, Government Code 56133, and LAFCO Resolution 
No. 07-27, the Commission must approve any new or extension of services outside the existing 
city limits or outside the area depicted in Resolution 07-27 as the Airport Industrial Area.  

 

Attachment Six


	10-5-20_5a_Minutes_8-3-20.pdf
	MINUTES 8-3-20.pdf
	LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NAPA COUNTY
	REGULAR* MEETING MINUTES OF AUGUST 3, 2020
	1. WELCOME AND CALL TO ORDER; ROLL CALL
	2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	3. APPROVAL OF AMENDED AGENDA
	VOTE:
	4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	5. CONSENT ITEMS
	VOTE:
	7. ACTION ITEMS
	VOTE:
	VOTE:
	VOTE:
	9. ADJOURNMENT TO NEXT REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING



	10-5-20_6b_WorkProgram.pdf
	6b_WorkProgram_Attachment1.pdf
	10-5-20


	10-5-20_8a_Islands.pdf
	8a_Islands_Attachment2.pdf
	Sheet1





